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Chairman’s Statement

ERHE

| have pleasure in presenting to the shareholders the
annual report of the Company for the year ended 31st
December, 2008.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year under review, the Group’s revenue was
HK$7.6 million and the loss attributable to equity
holders of the Company was HK$1.5 million. The
Group was debt-free and maintained a strong liquidity
position.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a
final dividend.

The Annual General Meeting (the “AGM”) of the
Company will be held on 7th May, 2009 and there
will be no closure of the Register of Members of the
Company as no final dividend is being paid.

PROSPECTS

The uncertainties relating to the future course of
interest rates and the implementation of economic
stimulus measures in Mainland China in response
to its changing economic situation continue to bear
significant impact on the outlook for the Hong Kong
economy. In addition, the recent turmoil in the US sub-
prime mortgage market continues to have an impact
on the Hong Kong economy and more generally on
the global equity and credit markets. Consequently,
management continues to exercise caution in the
extension of credit and is comfortable with the level of
the Company'’s activities. While we always stay alert
to the challenges as well as opportunities brought
about by these uncertainties, we remain cautiously
optimistic the Group should be able to progress well in
the year 2009.
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Chairman’s Statement
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APPRECIATION B

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | HAAZRXEETG ([EFS)HEEERSEET
would like to express my sincere appreciation to the RNiBE—F 7 BEMIGERHE -

management and our staff for their dedicated service

during the year.
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Chairman John Zwaanstra
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Discussion and Analysis of Annual Results

BFERRTRE S

The Group’s treasury investments recorded a
decrease in profit. The activity level in the Group’s
mortgage finance business segment remained at a
modest level. For the year ended 31st December,
2008, the Group recorded a loss attributable to equity
holders of the Company of HK$1.5 million (2007:
HK$2.7 million) with revenue of HK$7.6 million (2007:
HK$11.6 million).

RESULTS FORTHE YEAR

The principal businesses of the Group remained
mortgage finance and treasury investments.

The competition in mortgage finance market remained
keen and interest margin continued to remain low. The
revenue contributed by mortgage finance increased
to HK$1.8 million (2007: HK$1.2 million) and the profit
contributed by mortgage finance increased to HK$1.4
million (2007: HK$1.2 million).

The revenue contributed by the treasury investments
dropped to HK$5.8 million (2007: HK$10.4 million) as
a result of decrease in securities trading activities. The
profit contributed by treasury investments decreased
to HK$3.4 million (2007: HK$10.0 million).

TOTAL ASSETS

At 31st December, 2008, total assets decreased
slightly to HK$230.0 million (2007: HK$231.0 million).
All assets were denominated in Hong Kong dollars
except for the available-for-sale investments and
some bank balances, which were denominated in
United States dollars and some of the convertible
bonds investments which were denominated in
Singapore dollars, United States dollars and Chinese
Renminbi Yuan; henceforth there was an exposure to
foreign exchange currency rate risk albeit a modest
one.

The Group maintained a very strong liquidity position
throughout the year. At the balance sheet date, the
Group had held-for-trading investments amounting
to HK$40.3 million (2007: HK$8.0 million) and bank
balances amounting to HK$122.5 million (2007:
HK$169.2 million).
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Discussion and Analysis of Annual Results

BFERRTRE S

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Currently, the Group is debt-free. There were no
charges on the Group’s assets and the Group had no
material capital commitment or contingent liabilities
outstanding at the end of the year (2007: Nil).

The net asset value of the Group at 31st December,
2008 decreased by 0.3% to HK$228.6 million (2007:
HK$229.3 million), with the net asset value per share
standing at HK$1.02 (2007: HK$1.02).

STAFF AND REMUNERATION

The Group had 10 (2007: 9) employees at 31st
December, 2008 and total staff costs incurred during
the year amounted to HK$2.8 million (2007: HK$4.2
million). The Group offers competitive remuneration
packages to its employees. Currently, there is no
share option granted or exercised during the year
after the adoption of the share option scheme
approved in the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 22nd May, 2008.

OUTLOOK

The Group continues to maintain its traditional
principal activities after the takeover by new
management during 2007. However, management
is conducting a review of the business operations
and financial position of the Group, with a view to
formulating a business plan and strategy suitable
for the Group. At the same time, management is
evaluating all and any other options, including
but not limited to expanding the current financial
services business of the Group, commencing real
estate development business or expanding into other
businesses on an opportunistic basis.
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Corporate Governance Report

ERELRE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance within a sensible
framework with an emphasis on the principles of
transparency, accountability and independence.
The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”)
believes that good corporate governance is
essential to the success of the Company and to the
enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles of and
complied with the applicable code provisions of
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) during the year ended 31st
December, 2008. The Board will review the current
practices at least annually and make appropriate
changes if considered necessary. During the year,
the Board has reviewed and updated the corporate
governance’s framework; inter alia, and engagement
of external professionals to review the internal control.

THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises seven Directors
in total, with four executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”). The
composition of the Board during the year and up to the
date of this report is set out as follows:

Executive Directors:

John Zwaanstra (Chairman)
John Pridjian (Chief Executive)
Todd David Zwaanstra
Jonathon Jarrod Lawless

INEDs:

Alan Howard Smith, J.P.
Stephen King Chang-Min
Patrick Smulders
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Corporate Governance Report
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THE BOARD (continued)

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set
out in the “Directors and Senior Management” section
on pages 30 to 34.

The INEDs, with sound professional expertise
and experience, actively participate in the Board
and committee meetings and bring independent
judgment on issues relating to the Group’s strategy,
performance and management process, taking into
account the interests of all shareholders. They also
take various roles in the Board committees.

Throughout the year, the Company had three
INEDs representing more than one-third of the
Board. All INEDs have the appropriate professional
qualifications or related financial management
expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The
Board has received from each INED an annual
confirmation of his independence and considers that
all the INEDs are independent under the guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The INEDs have been expressly identified as such in
all corporate communications of the Company that
disclose the names of Directors. The INEDs were
appointed for a fixed term of three years.
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THE BOARD (continued)

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall
strategy as well as the operation and financial
performance of the Group in addition to the meetings
for reviewing and approving the Group’s annual and
interim results. During the year, five Board meetings
were held and attendance of each Director at the
Board meetings is set out as follows:
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Number of Board meetings
attended/eligible to attend

HEEEKREE
EEEER 2R
Executive Directors: HITES:
John Zwaanstra (Chairman) John Zwaanstra (£ /%) 5/5
John Pridjian (Chief Executive) John Pridjian (77 42 %t) 5/5
Todd David Zwaanstra Todd David Zwaanstra 5/5
Jonathon Jarrod Lawless Jonathon Jarrod Lawless 5/5
INEDs: BYFHTES:
Alan Howard Smith, J.P. Alan Howard Smith A F#4 1 4/5
Stephen King Chang-Min Stephen King Chang-Min 4/5
Patrick Smulders Patrick Smulders 4/5

The Board has reserved for its decision or
consideration matters covering mainly the Group’s
overall strategy, annual operating budget, financial
performance, recommendations on Directors’
appointment or re-appointment, material contracts
and transactions as well as other significant policy
and financial matters. The Board has delegated the
daily operations and administration to the Executive
management under the supervision of the Executive
Committee (members of which consists of four
executive Directors) which has its specific written
terms of reference. The respective functions of the
Board and management of the Company have been
formalised and set out in writing which was approved
by the Board in October 2005, of which the Board has
reviewed during the year.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Board meetings each year are scheduled in advance
to facilitate maximum attendance of Directors and
to be held at approximately quarterly intervals and
as required by business needs. At least 14 days’
notice of a Board meeting is given to all Directors for
the regular meetings who are given an opportunity
to include matters for discussion in the agenda.
The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in
preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures that
all applicable rules and regulations are complied with.
The agenda and the accompanying Board papers are
normally sent to all Directors at least 3 days before the
intended date of a regular Board meeting (and so far
as practicable for such other Board meetings). Draft
minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to all
Directors for their comment before the same will be
tabled at the following Board meeting for approval.
All minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and
are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director.

According to the current Board practice, any
transaction which involves a conflict of interests for
a substantial shareholder or a Director and which is
considered by the Board to be material will be dealt
with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting.
The articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles of Association”) also stipulate that a Director
should abstain from voting and not be counted in the
quorum at meetings for approving transactions in
which such Director or any of his associates have a
material interest therein.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Every Director is entitled to have access to board
papers and related materials and has access to
the advice and services of the Company Secretary.
The Board and each Director also have separate
and independent access to the Company’s senior
management. Directors will be updated continuously
on the major development of the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements to
ensure compliance and upkeep of good corporate
governance practices. In addition, a written procedure
was established in October 2005 to enable the
Directors, in the discharge of their duties, to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at a reasonable cost to be borne by the
Company.

Roles of Chairman and Chief Executive

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive are
separate to reinforce their respective independence
and accountability. The Chairman of the Company is
Mr. John Zwaanstra who is primarily responsible for
the leadership of the Board, ensuring that sufficient
time is allowed for the Board to discuss complex or
contentious issues, that all Directors are properly
briefed on issues arising at Board meetings, and
that the Directors receive accurate, timely and clear
information. The functions of the Chief Executive are
performed by an Executive Director, Mr. John Pridjian
who is responsible for the executive management
of the Company’s operations. The division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and Chief
Executive has been set out in writing and approved by
the Board in June 2005.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Nomination Committee has been established in
June 2005 and currently consists of five members,
Messrs. Jonathon Jarrod Lawless (Chairman), Todd
David Zwaanstra, Alan Howard Smith, J.P, Stephen
King Chang-Min and Patrick Smulders.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination
Committee are:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board on a regular basis and make
recommendations to the Board regarding any
proposed changes;

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection
of, individuals nominated for directorships;

(iii) to assess the independence of INEDs;

(iv) to make recommendations to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment or
re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors in particular the Chairman
and the Chief Executive;

(v) to do any such things to enable the Committee to
discharge its powers and functions conferred on
it by the Board; and

(vi) to conform to any requirement, direction,
and regulation that may from time to time be
prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitution of the Company or imposed by
legislation.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
have been posted on the Company’s website.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Appointment and Re-election of Directors
(continued)

The Nomination Committee shall meet before the
holding of an annual general meeting of the Company
(“AGM”") where appointment of Directors will be
considered and additional meetings shall be held as
and when necessary. During the year, one Nomination
Committee meeting was held before the 2008 AGM to
consider the re-election of Directors and attendance
of each member is set out as follows:
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Number of Committee meetings
attended/eligible to attend

HE S REREE

ZEEERZRE
Committee member ZEgHE
Jonathon Jarrod Lawless (Chairman) Jonathon Jarrod Lawless (/&) 11
Todd David Zwaanstra Todd David Zwaanstra 1/1
Alan Howard Smith, J.P. Alan Howard Smith A 748 1+ 1/1
Stephen King Chang-Min Stephen King Chang-Min 0/1
Patrick Smulders Patrick Smulders 01

Messrs. Jonathon Jarrod Lawless, Todd David
Zwaanstra, Alan Howard Smith, J.P, Stephen King
Chang-Min and Patrick Smulders were appointed as
committee members and Mr. Jonathon Jarrod Lawless
was appointed as Chairman of the Nomination
Committee on 3rd July, 2007.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Appointment and Re-election of Directors
(continued)

Every newly appointed Director of the Company will
receive an information package from the Company
Secretary on the first occasion of his appointment.
This information package is a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the responsibilities and
on-going obligations to be observed by a director
pursuant to the Companies Ordinance, Listing Rules
and Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”). In
addition, this information package includes material
to briefly describe the operations and business of
the Company. Directors will be continuously updated
on the major development of the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements to
ensure compliance and upkeep of good corporate
governance practices.

Each INED was appointed for a specific term of three
years, but subject to the relevant provisions of the
Articles of Association or any other applicable laws
whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from their
office.

According to the Articles of Association, at each AGM
of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) should
retire from office by rotation. Further, any Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy should hold office
only until the next following general meeting of the
Company whilst for those appointed as an addition to
the Board should hold office until the next following
AGM and in both cases; those Directors would then be
eligible for re-election at the relevant meeting. Every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Board Committees

In addition to the Nomination Committee, the
Board has established three committees, being the
Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and
Executive Committee, each of which has its specific
written terms of reference. Copies of minutes of all
meetings and resolutions of the committees, which
are kept by the Company Secretary, are circulated to
all Board members and the committees are required
to report back to the Board on their decision and
recommendations where appropriate. The procedures
and arrangements for a Board meeting, as mentioned
on page 11 in the section “The Board” above, have
been adopted for the committee meetings so far as
practicable.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established
since June 2005 and currently consists of five
members, including Messrs. Todd David Zwaanstra
(Chairman), John Pridjian, Alan Howard Smith, J.P,
Stephen King Chang-Min and Patrick Smulders. The
Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties and has access to
independent professional advice in accordance with
the Company’s policy if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration
Committee are:

(i) to consult the Chairman and/or the Chief
Executive of the Company about their proposals
relating to the remuneration of executive
Directors and the senior management (which
should refer to the same category of persons as
referred to in the Company’s annual report and
is required to be disclosed under paragraph 12
of Appendix 16 or other rule(s) from time to time
of the Listing Rules) of the Company (the “Senior
Management”);
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THE BOARD (continued)

Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

(i)

(iii)

to make recommendations to the Board on the
policy and structure for all remuneration of the
Directors and the Senior Management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration;

have the delegated responsibility to determine
the specific remuneration packages of all
Executive Directors and the Senior Management,
including (but not limited to) benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments
(such as compensation payable for loss or
termination of their office or appointment),
and make recommendations to the Board
of the remuneration of Independent Non-
Executive Directors. The Committee should
consider factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors, employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration;

to review and approve the compensation
payable to Executive Directors and Senior
Management in connection with any loss or
termination of their office or appointment to
ensure that such compensation is determined in
accordance with relevant contractual terms and
that such compensation is otherwise fair and not
excessive for the Company;

to review and approve compensation
arrangements relating to dismissal or removal
of Directors for misconduct to ensure that such
arrangements are determined in accordance
with relevant contractual terms and that any
compensation payment is otherwise reasonable
and appropriate;
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THE BOARD (continued)

Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

(vi) to ensure that no Director or any of his associates
is involved in deciding his own remuneration. For
this purpose, the remuneration of any member of
the Committee shall be determined by the Board;

(vii) to advise shareholders of the Company on how
to vote with respect to any service contracts of
Directors that require shareholders’ approval
under Rule 13.68 or other rule(s) from time to time
of the Listing Rules; and

(viii) to review and approve performance based
remuneration by reference to the goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to
time.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee were adopted in June 2005 and revised in
July 2007 and have been posted on the Company’s
website.

EEE ()

EEZEE(®

HHWZE = ()

(vi) ERHMEEEAETABEASEETELS
ZHEMoME - ZESEAKRE ZFHA
HEFEET

(vii) SEARIR TR RIFE13.681K3 TSR E 2 H b 57
AIRER R EZ EMESREAL AR
AIRREHABNRARRZER &

(vii) BB2REFTS IR BB ARBER R &k
Ho /R R IR T 2 B -

FNEZEE S BESENR _STRFARMLR
“ETLFLALF REBEERARFEE -



Corporate Governance Report

ERELRE

THE BOARD (continued)

Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once
a year. One committee meeting was held in 2008
to review (i) the existing policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors and Senior Management;
(ii) the remuneration packages of all the Executive
Directors and Senior Management; and (iii) the
remuneration of the INEDs and the attendance of each
member are set out as follows:
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Number of Committee meetings
attended/eligible to attend

HE/SERHE

ZEEERZRE
Committee member ZEGHE
Todd David Zwaanstra (Chairman) Todd David Zwaanstra (/&) 1/1
John Pridjian John Pridjian 11
Alan Howard Smith, J.P. Alan Howard Smith A 74 1+ 1/1
Stephen King Chang-Min Stephen King Chang-Min 11
Patrick Smulders Patrick Smulders 11

Messrs. Todd David Zwaanstra, John Pridjian,
Alan Howard Smith, J.P., Stephen King Chang-
Min and Patrick Smulders were appointed as
committee members and Mr. Todd David Zwaanstra
was appointed as Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee on 3rd July, 2007.

The remuneration payable to Directors will depend
on their respective contractual terms under their
service contracts as approved by the Board on the
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee.
Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in
note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)
During the year, the Remuneration Committee
recommended to the Board for the followings:

(i) no payment of a director’s fee to each of the
executive Directors; and

(i) the remuneration of the INEDs remained
appropriate in the current market conditions in
Hong Kong.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently consists of three
INEDs. To retain independence and objectivity,
the Audit Committee has been chaired by Mr.
Alan Howard Smith, J.P. who has the appropriate
professional qualifications or related financial
management expertise. The other members of the
Audit Committee are Messrs. Stephen King Chang-
Min and Patrick Smulders. The Audit Committee is
provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
duties and has access to independent professional
advice according to the Company’s policy if
considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee
are:

(i) to be primarily responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external
auditor, to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of resignation or dismissal of that
auditor;

(i) to consider and discuss with the external auditor
the nature and scope of each year’s audit;
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THE BOARD (continued)

Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

(iii) to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standard;

(iv) to review the interim and annual financial
statements before submission to the Board;

(v) to consider any significant or unusual items that
are, or may need to be, reflected in the interim
and annual financial statements, and any matters
the external auditor, the Company’s Qualified
Accountant or compliance officer may wish to
discuss;

(vi) to review the Group’s financial controls, internal
control and risk management systems; and

(vii) to consider any findings of major investigations
of internal control matters as delegated by the
Board and management’s response.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee of the
Company were revised in June 2005 and have been
posted on the Company’s website.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year.
Two committee meetings were held in 2008 and the
attendance of each member is set out as follows:

EFEE (W)
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FRZREE (A)
ERLZBEEFAELETMREHE R_TFN
FEARMAREE M uﬁX%Zﬁ}%}’K%UZD‘F :

Number of Committee meetings
attended/eligible to attend

HEAERHE
ZEEERZRE
Committee member ZEBEHE
Alan Howard Smith, J.P. (Chairman) Alan Howard Smith X -F## 1 (£ &) 2/2
Stephen King Chang-Min Stephen King Chang-Min 2/2
Patrick Smulders Patrick Smulders 2/2

During the meetings held in 2008, the Audit
Committee had performed the work as summarised
below:

(i) recommended to the Board for the re-
appointment of Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu (“DTT") as auditor of the Group;

(i) reviewed and recommended to the Board for
approval the engagement letters issued by DTT
for the confirmation of various matters relating to
DTT’s engagement as auditor of the Group for the
year ended 31st December, 2007 and for the six
months ended 30th June, 2008;

(iii) reviewed the letter of representation and the
financial statements for the year ended 31st
December, 2007 and recommended the same to
the Board for approval;

(iv) reviewed the letter of representation and
unaudited interim financial information for
the six months ended 30th June, 2008 and
recommended the same to the Board for
approval;
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THE BOARD (continued)

Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)
(v) reviewed the auditor’s independent review report
for the six months ended 30th June, 2008; and

(vi) reviewed the internal control system with the
support from the external professionals on the
operations and performance of the Group.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee has been established since
October 2005 and currently consists of four Executive
Directors, being Messrs. John Pridjian (Chairman),
John Zwaanstra, Todd David Zwaanstra and Jonathon
Jarrod Lawless. The Executive Committee is vested
with all the general powers of management and
control of the activities of the Group as are vested
in the Board of the Company, save for those matters
which are reserved for the Board’s decision and
approval pursuant to the written terms of reference of
the Executive Committee.

The Executive Committee meets as and when
necessary to discuss the operating affairs of the
Group. It is mainly responsible for undertaking and
supervising the day-to-day management and is
empowered:

(i) to formulate and implement policies for the
business activities and internal control and
administration of the Group; and

(i) to plan and decide on strategies to be adopted
for the business activities of the Group within the
overall strategy of the Group as determined by
the Board.

EFEE (W)

EEZEE(H)

ERLZRE (B)
(v) BRRBEIRBE_ZZN\FARA=THILR
BAZEIEHRE &

(vi) EIMBEXALIXETERZAEELZERRA
ZNBREEIE R AR -

HITEZEE

WTZEeR_STAFTAKY - BRIANAC
778 E4 B - BEJohn Pridjianst £ (£ /&) -
John Zwaanstrat & + Todd David Zwaanstrat &£ &
Jonathon Jarrod Lawless%t & - IITZESEKR T 5
EEMEREARNASRIEE A —REEMZTS
EERBRTZES ENBRAEEEBRFES
BREMBAEZZEEERIN o

HITZEERARTERETER LA‘TumaZlS;’%@Z
LEEH HIZRAERERERA BEHE
I 5

() BIENREERBASBEZAELE AEERE
FATHIESR + &

(iy FEFERTLASERERBEBNRE R
REANEE BRI T RN K -



Corporate Governance Report

ERELRE

THE BOARD (continued)

Codes for Securities Transactions by Directors and
Relevant Employees

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors. All Directors
have confirmed, following a specific enquiry by the
Company, that they have complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code.

To comply with the code provisions A.5.4 of the
CG Code, the Company has also established and
adopted in June 2005 the Model Code, to regulate
dealings in the securities of the Company by all
employees of the Company who are considered to
be likely in possession of unpublished price sensitive
information in relation to the Company or its securities.

Accountability and Audit

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility
for preparing, with the support from accounting
department, the financial statements of the Group. In
preparing the financial statements for the year ended
31st December, 2008, the accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (which also include Hong
Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Listing Rules and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance were complied with.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s
external auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
are set out in the Auditor’s Report on pages 41 to 43.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Accountability and Audit (continued)

Internal Control

The Group’s internal control system is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss and manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational
systems. In 2008, the Board, through the Audit
Committee and the external professionals, has
reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
systems of the Group.

Internal audit

The external professionals carry out a systematic
approach to improve the effectiveness of the
internal control systems of the Group. The external
professionals present its report and findings and the
annual audit plan at the Audit Committee meetings
for approval. Copies of the minutes of the Audit
Committee meetings have also be sent to the Board
for information.

External Auditor's Remuneration

During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the
Company'’s external auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, is set out as follows:

Services rendered for the Group

The Hong Kong Building and Loan Agency Limited 2008 Annual Report
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Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognises the importance of good
communication with shareholders. Information in
relation to the Group is disseminated to shareholders
in a timely manner through a number of formal
channels, which include interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars. Such published
documents together with the latest corporate
information as well as the recent development of the
Group are also made available on the Company’s
website.

The Company’s annual general meeting (the “AGM”)
is a valuable forum for the Board to communicate
directly with the shareholders. The Chairman
participated in the 2008 AGM and personally chaired
the meeting to answer any questions from the
shareholders. The Chairman of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee were available to
answer questions at the AGM. A separate resolution
was proposed by the Chief Executive in respect of
each issue to be considered at the AGM. An AGM
circular was distributed to all shareholders at least
21 days prior to the AGM, setting out details of each
proposed resolution, voting procedures (including
procedures for demanding and conducting a poll)
and other relevant information. The Chief Executive
explained the procedures for demanding and
conducting a poll again at the beginning of the AGM,
and (except where a poll is demanded) reveals how
many proxies for and against have been received in
respect of each resolution.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Corporate Government Enhancement

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a
matter of applying and complying with the CG Code
of the Stock Exchange but about promoting and
developing an ethical and healthy corporate culture.
We will continue to review and, where appropriate,
improve our current practices on the basis of our
experience, regulatory changes and developments.
Any views and suggestions from our shareholders
to promote and improve our transparency are also
welcome.

On behalf of the Board

John Zwaanstra

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26th March, 2009
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report
together with the audited financial statements of the
Group and the Company for the year ended 31st
December, 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in investment holding, treasury investments
and the provision of mortgage finance and other
related services. The principal activities and other
particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out
in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the year.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
principal activity and geographical area for the year
ended 31st December, 2008 is set out in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st
December, 2008 are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 44.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of
a final dividend for the year (2007: Nil). No interim
dividend was declared for the year (2007: Nil).

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years
ended 31st December, 2008, as extracted from the
audited consolidated financial statements, is set out
on page 104.
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PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company during the year are set out in
note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out
in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group
and of the Company during the year are set out in
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity on
page 47 and note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out
in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

John Zwaanstra (Chairman)
John Pridjian (Chief Executive)
Todd David Zwaanstra
Jonathon Jarrod Lawless

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Alan Howard Smith, J.P

Stephen King Chang-Min

Patrick Smulders

In accordance with Article 120 of the Company’s
Articles of Association, Messrs. John Pridjian,
Jonathon Jarrod Lawless and Stephen King Chang-
Min, shall retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.
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BRIEF BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS
OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

John Zwaanstra, aged 43, was appointed the
Chairman and an Executive Director of the Company
in July, 2007. He is a professional investor who has
extensive experience in real estate, investment
management and securities analysis. He has
approximately 20 years of experience in investment
management with Asian markets. Mr. John Zwaanstra
received a Bachelor of Arts Degree manga cum laude
from Harvard University.

John Pridjian, aged 44, was appointed the Chief
Executive and an Executive Director of the Company
in July, 2007. He has served as the Chief Financial
Officer of Penta Investments Advisers Limited
(“Penta”) since 2004 and its director since February
2009. Prior to joining Penta, Mr. Pridjian was a tax
principal for two years with Deloitte & Touche LLP
(“Deloitte”), and was also a member firm partner
approximately for one year with the Arthur Andersen
LLP tax practice acquired by Deloitte. Prior to this
time, from 1993 to 2001, Mr. Pridjian practiced law
with Sidley Austin LLP in Los Angeles where he was
a partner. Mr. Pridjian’s practice focused on advising
private equity and multinational corporate clients and
hedge funds on cross-border mergers, acquisitions
and investment transactions. Mr. Pridjian received his
degree of Master of Business Administration from the
University of Chicago. He received his Juris Doctor
and Bachelor of Science degrees from the University
of lllinois. He is registered as a Certified Public
Accountant in the State of lllinois. He is a member of
the State Bar of California and has written several law
review articles.
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BRIEF BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS
OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Todd David Zwaanstra, aged 36, was appointed an
Executive Director of the Company in July, 2007. He
is a Senior Trader for Penta. Prior to joining Penta in
2006, Mr. Zwaanstra worked for Goldman, Sachs &
Co. in San Francisco for over nine years as a Vice
President of Global Equity Derivative Sales. He was
responsible for advising hedge funds, investment
managers, and pension funds. His role involved the
execution, analysis and marketing of Equity Derivative
Products. Mr. Zwaanstra received a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Economics from the University of California
at Los Angeles. Mr. Todd David Zwaanstra is the
younger brother of Mr. John Zwaanstra.

Jonathon Jarrod Lawless, aged 32, was appointed
an Executive Director of the Company in July, 2007.
He is an Analyst for Penta. Prior to joining Penta, Mr.
Lawless worked for over eight years with Colonial First
State in Australia. Mr. Lawless was a Portfolio Manager
of hedge funds in the Fund of Hedge Funds team,
and strategy specialist covering idea generation,
manager due diligence and monitoring across equity
hedge fund strategies globally. Mr. Lawless holds a
Bachelor's degree in Commerce, from the University
of Melbourne, and completed the Financial Services
Institute of Australasia Graduate Diploma in Applied
Finance and Investment.
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BRIEF BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS
OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Alan Howard Smith, J.P, aged 65, was appointed
an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company in July, 2007. Mr. Smith graduated with
a LLB (Honours) degree from Bristol University,
England in 1964 and was admitted as a solicitor in
England in 1967 and in Hong Kong in 1970. Mr. Smith
has approximately 30 years of investment banking
experience in Asia. He was elected a council member
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on two occasions. He was a
member of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region Government’s Economic Advisory Committee,
and was for 10 years a member of the Hong Kong
Government’s Standing Committee on Company
Law Reform. Mr. Smith retired as the Vice Chairman,
Pacific Region, of Credit Suisse First Boston (“CSFB”),
a leading global investment bank, in December
2001. Prior to joining CSFB, he was a director of The
Jardine Fleming Group Limited (“JF”) from 1975 to
1996. Mr. Smith is also a director of a number of other
listed companies including Frasers Property (China)
Limited, Kingway Brewery Holdings Limited, Star
Cruises Limited and VXL Capital Limited which are
listed on the Stock Exchange. In addition, he is also
a director of a number of other companies with their
shares listed on the Irish Stock Exchange, London
Stock Exchange, Singapore Stock Exchange or
Kuwait Stock Exchange.
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BRIEF BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS
OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Stephen King Chang-Min, aged 42, has been
appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company since July, 2007. Mr. King is a Partner
and member of the Investment Committee of Unitas
Capital (formerly known as CCMP Capital Asia and
J.P. Morgan Partners Asia) based in Hong Kong and
oversees the firm’s activities in Australia and New
Zealand. Mr. King is currently Chairman of Waco
International and Repco Corporation. He additionally
serves on the boards of Independent Liquor,
Godfreys, Air International Thermal and Yellow Pages
Group (New Zealand). Mr. King is also the Treasurer
of The Hong Kong Venture Capital Association and
serves on its Executive Committee. Prior to joining
Unitas Capital in 2001, Mr. King spent more than eight
years with J.P. Morgan & Co. in New York and Hong
Kong. Mr. King holds a Bachelor of Arts degree cum
laude from Harvard University. Mr. King was a director
of Yellow Pages (Singapore) Pte Ltd. from June 2003
to January 2007, a company with its shares listed on
the Singapore Stock Exchange.

Patrick Smulders, aged 43, was appointed an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
in July, 2007. Mr. Smulders is a Senior Managing
Director and member of the Investment Committee
of TowerBrook Capital Partners. Prior to the formation
of TowerBrook, Mr. Smulders was a Senior Managing
Director and an Investment Committee Member at
Soros Private Equity. He was also a Deal Principal
and a co-founder of Doughty Hanson & Co from
1993 to 2003. Mr. Smulders earned his Bachelor of
Arts degree from Harvard University and received
his Master of Business Administration from Harvard
Business School.

EFRERITHRERME (W)

Stephen King Chang-Min * 425%, * B — 2 Z 4t
RBREZEAARRBZBIIERNITES - King ft4E
BUAEB AN 2 Unitas Capital (1#8CCMP Capital
Asia}2J.P. Morgan Partners Asia) REZ B A E A
MRKE - BB A EEBMNRITATEE 2 FE - King
% H£ IR BF AWaco International &zRepco Corporation
T % ° % Itk 4h Alndependent Liquor - Godfreys -
Air International Thermal )z Yellow Pages Group (New
Zealand)E E G K 8 ° Kingt £ I8 BB B 81 % &AL
EREWEZRBETARERTTE KRB —F
S AUnitas Capital 8 * King%e £ R4 B BB RJ.P.
Morgan & Co.fR 7% 8 B84 ° King?ﬁiﬁﬁwﬁﬁfﬁ
NEBLER (EF) cKingft At B - ET=F XA
£ -Z T+ F— A AYellow Pages (Singapore) Pte
Ltd. (—REBRDRFINEBEHEZ S LM RE]) 2
EEo

Patrick Smulders - 435% ' E _ T T L F L A
ZERARRBIZEIIFANITES ° SmuldersE £ 5
TowerBrook Capital Partnersis 4 & B 4445 18 KR &
Z B2 B - MTowerBrookfX 37 A * Smulders’t &
&Soros Private Equitym EFBLERIRELZE S
KE - BR— N NL=F&2=FF =75 ADoughty
Hanson & CoX 5= & R H£R Al A © Smuldersst &
BERHBABEXEELELIEREEERTH
BB EA -



Directors’ Report

EEERE

BRIEF BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS
OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Brian Ho Chi-Yuen, aged 40, was appointed the
Qualified Accountant and the Company Secretary of
the Company in July, 2007. Mr. Ho is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountant
(CPA) and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants (FCCA) in the United
Kingdom.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST

At 31st December, 2008, the following Directors of the
Company had interests in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”) or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers under
the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange (the “Model
Code”).

(a) Interests in the Company (long position)
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(a) RARQT 2= (FR)

Approximate %
of the issued

Number of share capital
Name of director shares held of the Company Notes
HERATE BT
EEHE BFERBHE RAEZBAB D i3
Mr. John Zwaanstra 168,750,000 75 1,2
John Zwaanstra%t &
Mr. Todd David Zwaanstra 168,750,000 75 1,3

Todd David Zwaanstrast 4
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(b) REBEE S (FR)

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST (continued)

(b) Interests in associated corporations (long

position)

Number of
Name of director Name of associated corporation shares held % of interest held Notes

BEER

EEHE HEEEAE BEROEE ZEDt i3
Mr. John Zwaanstra Mercurius Partners, LLP - 99.83 4
John Zwaanstra%t & Mercurius Partners, LLP
Mr. John Zwaanstra Mercurius Partners Investments Ltd. 100 100 4
John Zwaanstra%t & Mercurius Partners Investments Ltd.
Mr. Todd David Zwaanstra Mercurius Partners, LLP - 99.89 5
Todd David Zwaanstrat £ Mercurius Partners, LLP
Mr. Todd David Zwaanstra Mercurius Partners Investments Ltd. 100 100 6

Todd David Zwaanstrast £ Mercurius Partners Investments Ltd.

Notes: Biat -

168,748,013 shares and 1,987 shares of the 1.

Company (“Shares”) are directly held by Island
New Finance Limited (“INFL"”) and Mercurius
Partners Investments Limited (“MPIL"),
respectively. INFL was the wholly-owned
subsidiary of MPIL, the shares of which were
indirectly wholly-owned by Mercurius Partners
Trust (“MPT”), a discretionary trust.

Mr. John Zwaanstra was deemed interested in
the Shares through his control of more than one-
third of the voting power of Mercurius GP LLC
(“MGPLLC"), the founder of MPT.

Mr. Todd David Zwaanstra was deemed
interested in the Shares pursuant to his control of
more than one-third of the voting power of MPIL,
as trustee of MPT.

Island New Finance Limited ([ INFL 1) &
Mercurius Partners Investments Limited
(ITMPIL ) % Bl & # # 5 168,748,013/% &% 1,987
AR TR (TARM]) o INFLAMPILZ 2 &
B AE - ERRDIRE—IE 2 # = 5EMercurius
Partners Trust ([MPT|) B2 & A -

John Zwaanstrast 4 i 18 & £ SIMPT 2 813 A
Mercurius GP LLC (TMGPLLC D #BiI=5H — 2 &
REE AR ARROPEE RS -

Todd David Zwaanstra?c & ({fE AMPT 225 A)
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST (continued)

(b) Interests in associated corporations (long
position) (continued)

Notes: (continued)

4. Mr. John Zwaanstra was deemed interested in
Mercurius Partners, LLP (“MPLLP”) and MPIL by
reason of his being the beneficial owner of the
entire issued capital of MGPLLC. MGPLLC is the
founder of MPT, which is the controlling partner of
MPLLP. MPLLP in turn wholly owns MPIL.

5. Mr. Todd David Zwaanstra was beneficially
interested, and deemed interested in MPLLP as
trustee of MPT, which is the controlling partner of
MPLLP.

6. Mr. Todd David Zwaanstra was deemed to be
interested in MPIL as trustee of MPT. MPIL is
indirectly wholly-owned by MPT.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its
holding companies, or any of its fellow subsidiaries or
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS

At 31st December, 2008, the following shareholders
had interests in the shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO:

The Hong Kong Building and Loan Agency Limited 2008 Annual Report
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FERRZER

R-ZZEZNF+-_A=1+—8 REFIHFRBAERK
PIZE3361RMREPMF M2 ECMATSEL - A ARLQFAR
fiEmZ RRMT

Approximate % of
the issued share capital

Name of shareholder Number of shares held of the Company Notes
HEAT BT

BEEnE BERGOGHE BRAEZBAB D HtaE

Mercurius Partners Investments Limited 168,748,013 75 1

Mercurius Partners Investments Limited

Mr. Todd David Zwaanstra 168,750,000 75 2,3

Todd David Zwaanstrat 4

Mercurius GP LLC 168,748,013 75 2,4

Mercurius GP LLC

Mr. John Zwaanstra 168,750,000 75 2,5

John Zwaanstrat &

Notes: Kzt -

1. The 168,748,013 shares were held by INFL, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of MPIL. MPIL was therefore deemed
to have an interest in the Shares in which INFL was
interested.

2. These include the same interest in the 168,748,013
shares held by MPIL.

3. As at the date of his latest disclosure, Mr. Todd
David Zwaanstra was deemed to have an interest
in 168,750,000 shares in which MPIL was interested
pursuant to his control of more than one-third of the
voting power of MPIL as trustee of MPT, being a
discretionary trust.

4. MGPLLC was the founder of the MPT and was therefore
deemed to have interests in the 168,748,013 shares
and underlying shares in which Mr. Todd David
Zwaanstra and MPT were interested as at the date of
MGPLLC's latest disclosure.

1. #%168,748,013 A A IR AMPILZ & E I & A &)
INFLIF A * MPILE L3R BRINFLEZ 25 2 B B
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EEAMPTZERARNFHEGIMPILB =5 — 2 &R
1 A I 1 AR A AMPILE 25 2 168,750,0000% B% 15
AR -

4. HPMGPLLCZ &# ¥ % B & - MGPLLCAMPTZ &ll##
A - A48 AR Todd David Zwaanstrast £ EMPT
% #5.2168,748,0130 (& 10 RABRA IR D P HEB #EA ©

-



Directors’ Report

EEERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS (continued)

5. As at the date of his latest disclosure, Mr. John
Zwaanstra was deemed to have interests in the
168,750,000 shares through his control of more than
one-third of the voting power of MGPLLC.

The interests stated above represent a long position.
At 31st December, 2008, no short positions were
recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, none
of the Directors of the Company was considered to
have interests in any business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group pursuant to the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors of the Company proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
has an unexpired service contract with the Group
which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and/or
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Group was entered into or existed
during the year.

FERRZHER (B)
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments
of the five highest paid individuals in the Group are
set out in notes 9 and 10 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group
is set up by the Remuneration Committee on the
basis of the employees’ merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are
decided by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION
OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
shares during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31st December, 2008,
the Group’s revenue attributed to the five largest
customers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s
total revenue. The Group had no major suppliers due
to the nature of principal activities of the Group.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Details of the retirement benefit scheme of the Group
and the employer’s retirement benefit costs charged
to the consolidated income statement for the year
are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available
to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Directors, at the date of this report, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float as required under the
Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the AGM of the
Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

John Pridjian
Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 26th March, 2009
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B ZBEnRE

Deloitte.
=E)

TO THE MEMBERS OF THE HONG KONG
BUILDING AND LOAN AGENCY LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial
statements of The Hong Kong Building and Loan
Agency Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 44 to 103 which comprise the consolidated
and Company balance sheets as at 31st December,
2008, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the
consolidated financial statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant
to the preparation and the true and fair presentation
of the consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

BEREREERERATARR
(REEAMAK L2 BRZAE])

AZBEATEERM]) EEXBEREERE
Ram(TERARDREMBAR (REIESE] T
FHNF44EE10BENGEA MK » RS MR
REER-_ZEENFF+_A=+—RHZRAEEA
BEKk BERARMEERAGBR BEZALFEN
FARRR HARZEIRVIGARTRER
AR E B2 G HRME R MM TR -

EERGSMEBRAREHRE

BERREEARERBELSIMASRANER
MBHREENRBE(RAAGIDRENEERRF
Wy HZEEBVBRE - EETERER  EiE
RN EERR T RERE M BERERA
MM BPEE - MER A M S |mR AN FHE B R KGF
KRR MERHERNFRRA - BEMEREE N
FETBE  RIRBERIERAEM AR -



Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBEnRE

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the consolidated financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBEnRE

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31st December,
2008 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Vo 7l Tl —

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26th March, 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement For the year ended 31st December, 2008

_ 44

- o He-_ZZ  \F+-_A=+—HIFE
RekaE
2008 2007
—ZEENF —ETLF
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
k=3 FET FET
Revenue &= 5 7,553 11,556
Interest income L BUA 7129 8,672
Net realised loss on held-for-trading BIFEBEREAZESE
investments gi=beit- = (335)
Change in fair value of held-for-trading HIEFEERAZ
investments NEEEESH (2,106) 3
Realised gain on available-for-sale AHEEREY
investments B#R KR 22 2
Dividend income % 8 WA 424 2,884
Other income EmiggA 73 -
Operating expenses RS 7 (6,589) (11,321)
Net exchange losses M i B 18 F 5 (333) (4)
Loss before taxation BRELRTE B 7 (1,380) (99)
Taxation g 8 (85) (2,612)
Loss for the year REEEIE (1,465) (2,711)
Attributable to: fE(G
Equity holders of the Company ZIN/NE LSS (1,465) (2,711)
HK cents HK cents
Loss per share BREBE 12
Basic A (0.7) (1.2)
Diluted g N/AT3E F N/AT i B




Consolidated Balance Sheet

GEREARE
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HRERENERAR —BENFFR

At 31st December, 2008
R-ZZEENF+=-_A=+—H

2008 2007
—ZEENF —ETLF
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
k=3 FET FET

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Plant and equipment HEs KRB 13 114 143
Mortgage loans R|ER 14 7,863 4,142
Available-for-sale investments AHEHERE 17 39,179 42,480
47156 46,765

CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Mortgage loans R\ER 14 2,145 3,186
Held-for-trading investments BIEEEIRAE 16 40,256 8,024
Prepayments and other receivables FEAT R IE K E A R R IE 18,300 3,860
Bank balances IRITHER 18 122,507 169,198
183,208 184,268
CURRENT LIABILITIES wBEE

Other creditors and accruals Hab e IR R E AT & A 1,699 1,773
Tax payable FERT IR 85 -
1,784 1,773
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 181,424 182,495
228,580 229,260

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAR#E
Share capital & A 19 225,000 225,000
Reserves & 3,580 4,260
228,580 229,260

The consolidated financial statements on pages 44
to 103 were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors on 26th March, 2009 and are

signed on its behalf by:

#2E:

f‘)/mj‘mﬂ;

John Zwaanstra

Director
2

John Pridjian
Director
EFE

FABIBAZEAMBRELCESTEN —_TTNF
SAZTARARMERRENE YA TEEAR

45 B
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Balance Sheet

HERRE

At 31st December, 2008
RZEENF+-_A=+—H

2008 2007
SR —ETLE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 FHET FET

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Plant and equipment HEE KRR 13 110 136
Mortgage loans RB|ER 14 148 207
Available-for-sale investments AEEERE 17 39,179 42,480
Interests in subsidiaries R B AR 2w 23 152 152
39,589 42 975

CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Mortgage loans RB\ER 14 57 1,475
Held-for-trading investments BIEBEERAE 16 40,256 8,024
Amounts due from subsidiaries B AR R 24 12,015 8,511
Prepayments and other receivables FEAT R IE K E A R WK IR 18,234 3,819
Bank balances IRITHER 18 119,908 167,127
190,470 188,956
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAEE

Other creditors and accruals Hb e IR R BT B A 1,673 1,681
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 188,797 187,275
228,386 230,250

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRAR#E
Share capital % 72 19 225,000 225,000
Reserves ] 20 3,386 5,250
228,386 230,250

John Zwaanstra John Pridjian
Director Director
EE EF

_ 46



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GEEREDR
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HRERENERAR —BENFFR

For the year ended 31st December, 2008

BE_TT)\F+_A=1+—HLFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

DT R EE
Investments
Share revaluation Retained
capital reserve profits Total
rE
;N EARE RBEA “st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET FAET
At 1st January, 2007 R-ZEZE+F—HF—H 225,000 - 6,881 231,881
Fair value changes of HERERPERZ
available-for-sale investments AHEEREAT
directly recognised in equity BEE - 90 90
Loss for the year REEEIE - - (2,711) (2,711)
Total recognised income and REFEHR WA R
expense for the year x4 - 90 (2,711) (2,621)
At 31st December, 2007 and RZTTLF
1st January, 2008 +=—A=+—
—EENF— 225,000 90 4,170 229,260
Fair value changes of HERNERTER
available-for-sale investments AEHERE
directly recognised in equity N EBEZE - 807 - 807
Transfer to profit or loss HEATHHERE
on disposal of available- B AER
for-sale investments - (22) - (22)
Loss for the year AFEEEIE - - (1,465) (1,465)
Total recognised income and REFERABZBA
expense for the year M B - 785 (1,465) (680)
At 31st December, 2008 RZZENF
+=-—A=+—8H 225,000 875 2,705 228,580

7 .
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GEReRER

For the year ended 31st December, 2008

BE-2T/\F+-A=+—AILEE

2008 2007
—EENF —ZTTLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES e
Loss before taxation KA E 1B (1,380) (99)
Adjustments for: FARIEE :
Dividend income f% B A (424) (2,884)
Depreciation e 47 24
Impairment allowances on mortgage loans RIBERUREEE 24 28
Loss (gain) on fair value changes of BEEEREZRT
held-for-trading investments BEZEEE (WKE) 2,106 3)
Realised gain on available-for-sale AEfHERE 2B EHR
investments g (22) 2)
Unrealised exchange loss on available- AHEEREZRKER
for-sale investments P& B3 18 - 15
Unrealised exchange loss of CRMEEZRFREN
financial assets E51E 333 -
Operating cash flows before movements KREt2EE2EH
in working capital KEHBReRE 684 (2,921)
(Increase) decrease in mortgage loans R\E (L) R (2,704) 1,389
(Increase) decrease in held-for-trading investments 5 EE B1% & (38 hn) 5 4> (34,570) 18,039
Increase in prepayments and TE 15 5RI8 Fo H A Uk
other receivables SIEE N (14,614) (262)
Decrease in other creditors and accruals HEMEMERERRESERARD (75) 896
NET CASH FLOW (USED IN) FROM EEER (TR EE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES THESHBTFE (51,279) 17,141
CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEBFFAZES
Purchase of plant and equipment [ e (18) (150)
Purchase of available-for-sale investments EEAHEERE - (42,750)
Principal repayment of available- A ERE 2 R R
for-sale investments 4,185 -
Dividend received 2 AR 2 424 2,884
NET CASH FLOW FROM (USED IN) INVESTING ~ B&%BEL (FH) 2
ACTIVITIES ReKBER 4,591 (40,016)
DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B4 BB 4 ZEMH D (46,688) (22,875)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—B—HBZzEEK
AT 1ST JANUARY HeZEEY 169,198 192,073
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES EZSEHBEEIIMNERS
ON THE BALANCE OF CASH Hheweg
HELD IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES 3) -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+=ZA=+—-RHB=z8R%
AT 31ST DECEMBER, FERESZEEY
represented by Bank balances RITEERR 122,507 169,198




Notes to the Financial Statements

MBI KM

GENERAL

The Company is a limited company incorporated
in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Its parent company is
Island New Finance Limited, a limited company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. Its
ultimate holding company is Mercurius GP
LLC, a limited liability company incorporated
in the State of Nevada. The address of the
registered office of the Company is disclosed in
the corporate information of the annual report.
The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
same as the functional currency of the Company.
The principal activities of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are investment
holding, treasury investments and the provision
of mortgage finance and other related services.

APPLICATION OF NEW
AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following amendments and interpretations (“new
HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) which
are or have become effective.

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7 Reclassification of Financial
(Amendments) Assets

HK(IFRIC) - Int 11 HKFRS 2: Group and Treasury

Share Transactions

HK(IFRIC) - Int 12
HK(IFRIC) - Int 14

Service Concession Arrangements

HKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their
Interaction

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
HE-2E/\F+-A=t-ALTE

—REH

KRR A—HREBEFMA Iz BRAF - H
BIDREBBERSABR AR ([BZF))
£ e AR R Z &2 A Alsland New Finance
Limited * Y —HIRRBEZESTMK I 2B
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LLC + &% A ") J3# State of Nevadast Az 2B
FBRAF e RARZAMP BRI R AFRIA
AIBR — 8RR - NMRAEPBIREUB T
BIRRRZEEHIE - ARRIREMBA
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MBI R

APPLICATION OF NEW
AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material
effect on how the results and financial position
for the current or prior accounting periods have
been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no
prior period adjustment has been required.

The Group has not early applied the following
new and revised standards, amendments or
interpretations that have been issued but are not
yet effective.
HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to
HKFRSs'

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial

Statements?

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs?

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and
Separate Financial
Statements®

HKAS 32 & 1 Puttable Financial

(Amendments) Instruments and

Obligations Arising on
Liquidation?

HKAS 39 (Amendment) Eligible hedged items®

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment

(Amendments) in a Subsidiary, Jointly
Controlled
Entity or Associate?
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations?
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations®

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
HE_ZT)\F+_A=+—HBILFE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MBI KM

2. APPLICATION OF NEW
AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

HKFRS 8
HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 & HKAS 39
(Amendment)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 13

HK(IFRIC) - Int 15

HK(IFRIC) - Int 16

HK(IFRIC) - Int 17

HK(IFRIC) - Int 18

Improving disclosures
about Financial
Instruments?

Operating Segments?

Embedded Derivatives®

Customer Loyalty
Programmes*

Agreements for the
Construction of Real
Estate?

Hedges of a Net
Investment in a Foreign
Operation®

Distribution of Non-cash
Assets to Owners®

Transfer of Assets from
Customers’

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
HE-2E/\F+-A=t-ALTE

ERAMITREESITEEMBREE

R (#8)

BRI BREERETR BEBsRIEZRE
(IBFTK) &
BB BREER F85H T o e
EE(FRIC) -2 EE5%H & MARITET AS
BEGHERE305
(BFTK)
EB(IFRIC)— 2B E13% B Rt Ee
EB(FRIC)-2BE15% R E R E R H

EB(IFRIC) -2 B E16%

MBI RE B R

BB(FRIC) -2 EE1TH A#EEADKIERE
BE
BIB(FRIC) -2 EE18% BEPBRCEE

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2009 except the amendments to HKFRS 5,
which are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1st July, 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
July, 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
July, 2008

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
October, 2008

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
30th June, 2009

Effective for transfers of assets from customers
received on or after 1st July, 2009

The directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of the other new and revised

VRIEZNF A A RMER 2 FEHRELE
M MEE B IR EERNESSR ZERTRIN - HR
TERNFLA - BHHARFEZ FEHR AR

2 WOBEAF— A BRI 2 FE IR E

S RTETAFEA - BRNERRZ FERBER

¢ RTETNFEA - BRAERRZ FERBER

S RTETNF+H—-BRAERRZ FERBER

ZENFARA=TESINERRZ FEHBLE

T RIERENFLA-BRURESEFEBREZEE
ud

Y

ARFEEGTAIEREMHTET RAEIEATER -
BRI B e U AREZ XE M B RE

standards, amendments or interpretations will

have no material impact on the results and the

financial position of the Group.

HEBATE -



For the year ended 31st December, 2008
HE-2T/\F+-A=t-ALETE

Notes to the Financial Statements

MBI R

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on the historical cost basis
except for certain financial instruments, which
are measured at fair values, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the
Company (or its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired during the
year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the date of acquisition.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income
and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

FEEHBE

HEMBRRIIBREELRAEERHE - HHE
TERTARAFEESERN  BRAFBER
TXEGN 2 SRR ARRE -

RAEMBHRRDVBBEEEGHMASEMZE
BB mMEENRE - W SRAPBHRERH
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RNAD) EHHDEZ M BERE - EHEAAA Y
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RENMBBZHBRATZEET B WERH
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AEBESY S RERAEEL R E AT
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MBI KM

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Interests in subsidiaries

Interests in subsidiaries are included in
the Company’s balance sheet at cost less
any identified impairment loss. Results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividends received or receivable
during the year.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the
following bases:

(iy interest income from a financial asset
excluding financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss is accrued on a
time proportion basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable;

(i) dealings in held-for-trading securities and
disposals of investments are recognised
on a trade date basis when the relevant
contract notes are exchanged; and

(i) dividend income from investments is
recognised when the shareholders’ rights to
receive payment have been established.

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
BE_ZTTN\F+_-_A=+—HILFE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MBI R

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of
items of plant and equipment over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account their
estimated residual values, using the straight-line
method.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item) is included
in the consolidated income statement in the year
in which the item is derecognised.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At each balance sheet date, monetary items
denominated in foreign currency are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rate prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

3.

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MBI KM

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the translation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit and
loss in the period in which they arise, except
for exchange differences arising on a monetary
item that forms part of the Company’s net
investment in foreign operation, in which case,
such exchange differences are recognised in
equity in the consolidated financial statements.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period except
for differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in equity, in
which case, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in equity.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme are charged as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit as reported in the consolidated income
statement because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s and the
Company’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

3.

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
HE-2E/\F+-A=t-ALTE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MBI R

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted
for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is
charged or credited to profit or loss, except when
it relates to items charged or credited directly to
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt
with in equity.

3.

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
HE-2T/\F+-A=t-ALETE
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MBI KM

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another
standard, in which case the impairment loss
is treated as revaluation decrease under that
standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised as income immediately,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount under another standard, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as
revaluation increase under that standard.

3.

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised on the balance sheet when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets
and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s and the Company'’s financial assets
are classified into one of the three categories,
including financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

3.

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
HE-2T/\F+-A=t-ALETE

FERERR R

EMIA

E-REERRKAIAGNGZ—7 " Al
REERBERABRCREELRSREE -2
MEELSBAGVHEATEEANE - W
RETEREELERBEERRAEZIRSHK
ROEBBERRRATEEREZEREERS
BAERIN) DTRSERFMATREELS
BEEZAVEE AREHREEXNCHAE
ZAFEENE(ER) - WEEBRERR
AYEEREZcMEEN SR AERREN
ZRHKA - BB RE S B A FER

AEBEARARIZEMEED BRI T =(EE
Alz— BREBEERERAVEEREZS
MEE((EBEERRATEEREZERE
El) BERRERRBEARATHEESREE -
FIELEBERHEZEREE BWXHALZ
HERRALITHER EFBERHEEZLR
BEREEBRMSRGHENEE —BHRA
ETEEXNZEMEERSR -



Notes to the Financial Statements

MBI KM

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest rate method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
The financial assets at FVTPL of the Group and
the Company comprise financial assets held-for-
trading.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition, financial assets at FVTPL
are measured at fair value, with changes in fair
value recognised directly in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets.

3.

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market.
At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including
mortgage loans, other receivables and bank
balances) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy in
respect of impairment of financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated or not
classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans
and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.
The Group classified those debt securities as
available-for-sale financial assets.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets
are measured at fair value. Changes in fair
value are recognised in equity, until the financial
assets are disposed of or are determined to be
impaired, at which time, the cumulative gains
or losses previously recognised in equity are
removed from equity and recognised in profit
or loss (see accounting policy in respect of
impairment of financial assets below).

3.

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL,
are assessed for indicators of impairment at
each balance sheet date. Financial assets are
impaired where there is objective evidence that,
as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been impaired.

For all financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial re-
organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such
as mortgage loans, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are subsequently
assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Obijective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of mortgage
loans, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When
loans and receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised
cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

For available-for-sale debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed if
an increase in the fair value of the investment can
be objectively related to an event occurring after
the recognition of the impairment loss.

3.

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
The Group’s financial liabilities are generally
classified into other financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest rate method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, representing other
creditors are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly
in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the assets
expire or, the financial assets are transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’'s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised directly in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

3.

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
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MBI KM

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Operating leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are
charged to profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over term of the relevant lease. Benefits received
and receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of
rental expense over the lease term on a straight-
line basis.

KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in note 3,
management is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

3.

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
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KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Taxation

At 31st December, 2008, no deferred tax
assets have been recognised in the Group’s
and the Company’s balance sheets (2007: Nil)
respectively in relation to deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses. No deferred
tax assets have been recognised on the tax
losses of HK$53,690,000 (2007: HK$44,387,000)
in the Group’s and HK$53,690,000 (2007:
HK$43,534,000) in the Company’s balance
sheets due to unpredictability of future
assessable profit streams. The realisability of
the deferred tax assets mainly depends on
whether sufficient future assessable profits or
taxable temporary differences will be available
in the future. In cases where the actual future
assessable profits generated are more than
expected, a recognition of deferred tax asset
may arise, which would be recognised in the
consolidated income statement for the period in
which such a recognition takes place.

Impairment allowances on mortgage loans

The Group and the Company establish,
through charges against profit, impairment
allowances in respect of estimated incurred loss
in mortgage loans. The allowances consist of
individual impairment allowances and collective
impairment allowances. The overall impairment
allowances represent the aggregate amount by
which management considers necessary to write
down its loan portfolio in order to state it in the
balance sheet at its estimated net recoverable
value.

4,
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KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Impairment allowances on mortgage loans
(continued)

In determining individual impairment allowances,
management considers objective evidence
of impairment. When a loan is impaired, an
individual impairment allowance is assessed by
a discounted cash flow method, measured at the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate. The quantum of the allowance is also
impacted by the collateral value and this, in turn,
may be discounted in certain circumstances
to recognise the impact of forced sale or quick
liquidation.

In determining collective impairment allowances,
management uses estimates based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit
risk characteristics and objective evidence
of impairment similar to those in the portfolio
adjusted for current conditions.

The methodology and assumptions used for
estimating both the amount and timing of future
cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any
differences between loss estimates and actual
loss experience.

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
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Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 31st December, 2008

HE-TTNF+-A=t+-BLFE
MHERME

5. REVENUE 5. k&
Revenue represents interest income on W R IRIB E A B U K B 15 9% & Wiz 558
mortgage loans and net gain on treasury MV BIRERARERRBERITERRESL R
investments, which includes interest income on ZHE WA AR BHA o

bank deposits and debt securities and dividend

income.
An analysis of the revenue of the Group by BREEBEBED 2 ASERE 2 OTOT ¢
principal activity is as follows:
2008 2007
—EENF ZZTLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Mortgage finance: RiapE -
Interest on mortgage loans RIBERF L 1,779 1,199
Treasury investments: IR E -
Interest on bank deposits %Eﬁﬁ KB 3,111 7,388
Interest on available-for-sale investments HHEEREZFE 2,230 85
Interest on held-for-trading investments %{’FE BRE 28 9 -
Dividend income & B A 424 2,884
7,553 11,556
6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL 6. ¥R ESH P
SEGMENTS
Business segments ES 3t
For management purposes, the Group is TEEmME  AEEERSARMERLLE 5 E—
currently organised into two operating divisions RIEME R BRIEE c ENI I ARERZ R
— mortgage finance and treasury investments. HIESMER 2 EE « TEELMT -
These divisions are the basis on which the Group
reports its primary segment information. Principal
activities are as follows:
(a) the mortgage finance segment engages in (a) ZIBBE DR FIRBIZIBHE REAME
the provision of mortgage finance and other ARG &
related services; and
(b) the treasury investments segment includes (b) BB N ABIERITERZFERA
interest income on bank deposits, securities UEBEBAEATGEREIA ©

trading and dividend income.
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MR KM

6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS (continued)

Business segments (continued)

Segment information about these businesses is

presented below:

6.

The Hong Kong Building and Loan Agency Limited 2008 Annual Report
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008
HE_ZT)\F+_A=+—HILEE

RERMESE (&)

X% (&)
BREZREXEB 2 OMEMBRZ5IMT

2008
=E2ENF
Mortgage Treasury
finance investments Total
RBME MERE &5t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET FHET
Revenue Wz 1,779 5,774 7,553
Segment result DEFELE 1,361 3,356 4,717
Unallocated expenses KoBL (6,097)
Loss before taxation BRELATE B (1,380)
Taxation Tiig (85)
Loss for the year REEBE (1,465)
Segment assets DEEE 12,541 217,268 229,809
Unallocated assets KOBLEE 555
Total assets WEE 230,364
Segment liabilities nEEE 2 - 2
Unallocated liabilities AOEEE 1,782
Total liabilities BaE 1,784
Other information: Hi &R
Impairment allowances on RBERURE
mortgage loans BB (24) - (24)
Net exchange loss EH B FE - (333) (333)
Loss on fair value of FIEEEKREZ
held-for-trading investments NEEEEE - (2,106) (2,106)
Unallocated: KB :
Capital additions BARRE - (18)
Depreciation e = (47)

__
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MBI R

6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL 6. XHRihES &P (1)

SEGMENTS (continued)
Business segments (continued) ¥ ()
2007
—ZTELF
Mortgage Treasury
finance investments Total
ZERE Mg E A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEIL FEIL FET
Revenue Wz 1,199 10,357 11,556
Segment result N EBELE 1,171 10,027 11,198
Unallocated expenses KoBLx (11,297)
Profit before taxation B 7 A 0 ) (99)
Taxation T8 (2,612)
Profit for the year REF R (2,711)
Segment assets DEBEE 9,297 221,200 230,497
Unallocated assets ROWMEE 536
Total assets wEE 231,033
Segment liabilities NEPEE 4 - 4
Unallocated liabilities ROMERE 1,769
Total liabilities was 1,773
Other information: EMER -
Impairment allowances on RIBEFURE
mortgage loans bedic (28) - (28)
Net loss on held-for-trading FIEEBEREAZ
investments B85 8 - (832) (332)
Unallocated: RAMR :
Capital additions BRARE - (150)
Depreciation e - (24)
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BE_EEN\EFEFt+-_BA=+—HULEE
ISR A=t

6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL 6. (¥ RiHhES &P ()

SEGMENTS (continued)

Geographical segments i & 5 Zp

In presenting information on the basis of RIZME D E 25 E R - SERERBEZE
geographical segments, segment revenue is BEMTHETH

based on the geographical location of the assets:

2008 2007
—ZETN\F ZETLF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Hong Kong BB 4,689 11,471
Singapore N 9 -
European Union countries EEEETER 625 -
United States of America EJe 2,230 85
7,553 11,556
Segment assets and capital expenditure are REEH DEEERBABIIRIEZSEE
based on the geographical location in which the et @stE -
assets are located at the balance sheet date:
Carrying amount Additions to
of segment assets plant and equipment
DEEEZREE HERREZRE
2008 2007 2008 2007

“BRENE —TTHF ZBBN\E _—TTLHF
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHET FET FHETT

Hong Kong B 142,550 188,009 18 150
People’s Republic of China R AR EM 9,001 - - -
Singapore Honig 16,183 - = -
European Union countries BL BB B 17,537 - - -
United States of America EH 45,093 43,024 - -
230,364 231,033 18 150
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HE_ZEENE+_A=+—HIEE
ISR A=t

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

7. FRMAER

Loss before taxation has been arrived at after BrEEATE B E R ¢
charging:
2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Employee benefits expense (including BIRK(BIEESEHE
Directors’ emoluments (note 9): (K732£9))
Wages, salaries and bonus TE - HERaA 2,794 4,178
Retirement benefit costs (note 27) RIKEF MR SR (T a227) 34 30
2,828 4,208
Depreciation e 47 24
Auditor’s remuneration ZE BN & 460 460
Operating lease payments e 85 85
Impairment allowances on mortgage loans %18 & R (& 3 24 28
Legal and professional fees ERREXEER 1,365 4,870
TAXATION 8. RIA
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Hong Kong B
Current tax BERRIE 85 -
Deferred tax: (note 25) BIERIA : (AYaE25)
Current year KEE - 2,612
85 2,612
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TAXATION (continued)

On 26th June, 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative
Council passed the Revenue Bill 2008 and
reduced corporate profit tax rate from 17.5%
to 16.5% which is effective from the year of
assessment 2008/2009. Hong Kong Profits Tax
is calculated at 16.5% (2007: 17.5%) of the
estimated assessable profit for the year. The
tax charge for prior year represents the reversal
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses in previous years as the management of
the Company is uncertain as to the timing on the
utilisation of tax losses.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled
to the loss before taxation per the consolidated
income statement as follows:
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008
HE_ZZ)\F+_A=+—8LLEE

MR (|

RZFEZENFARAZ+AB BELFZEBEB
T \FRAKHER  EHRREZZZTN
F/ _TTNFIRFEBRZEENEH A
17.5%AEE16.5% - KFEEBBFEH 2 H5t
JERBEFN J91R16.5% (ZEZLF 1 17.5%) 2
MEFE - LF2BERAIIEARARAIEE
BHRESEZHARETETE  S8BAF
EARAREBBELEZEEHEEERD -

REZREM T A BGA RERAZ BT AE
BEERNOT :

2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss before taxation B B Bl 5 18 (1,380) (99)

Tax at the domestic income tax rate
of 16.5% (2007: 17.5%)

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax
purpose

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose

Tax effect of tax losses/deductible
temporary difference not recognised

Reversal of deductible temporary
difference previously recognised

Tax charge for the year

A MRS BB % 16.5%

(ZZTLF 175%)H

ZBE (228)
BRERBUZBAZHBEZE

(17)

(1,310) (1,832)

AAHB A 2 B2
82 518

RERBHEE, AT
TRMEER BB E 1,541 1,331

BB BT RER 2 AT

R R R - 2,612
REEHBEHRAZ 85 2,612

__
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008
ENF+ZA=+—HILFE

9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 9. EFElE
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 7 YRHFIR(ZEEEF - 4R2)EE2HE W
(2007: 14) Directors were as follows: ™
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Directors’ fee =¥k
Executive Directors: HITES
John Zwaanstra (Chairman) John Zwaanstra (£ /%) - -
John Pridjian (Chief Executive) John Pridjian (772 42 £t) - -
Todd David Zwaanstra Todd David Zwaanstra - -
Jonathon Jarrod Lawless Jonathon Jarrod Lawless -
Akihiro Nagahara* RIR&aL N/ATEH 5
Stephen Lo Kam Fai* frgich o N/ATRE A 5
Poon Mo Yiu* ERE N/ATiE A 5
Edwin Lo King Yau* BEWm N/ATEH -
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BAUKHITES:
Alan Howard Smith, J.P. Alan Howard Smith & F## 1~ 100 100
Stephen King Chang-Min Stephen King Chang-Min 100 100
Patrick Smulders Patrick Smulders 100 100
Chan Bo Ching* PR S N/ATEH 51
Li Chak Hung* B N/ATRIE B 41
Yuen Wai Ho* B i@ x> N/ATiE A 41
Total Directors’ fee ERWeBE 300 448
Other emoluments E B
Executive Director: HITES:
Akihiro Nagahara* RIR#L N/AT3E A 1,300
Total emoluments Bl 4858 300 1,748

There were no arrangements under which
a Director waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments.

*  The Directors resigned during the year 2007.

VERESFREXRERAEZTAMEMELZ
ke

Y REBEECOR-_ZETLERBHT-
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10. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments in the Group, two (2007: one) were
Directors of the Company whose emoluments are
included in the disclosures in note 9 above. The
emoluments of the remaining three (2007: four)
individuals were as follows:
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BE-2T/\F+-A=t-ALEFE

10. ERE &

RERASERAUKFSME ALBERLL (ZF
THF ) ARAES EPEFBRLEX
MizEo - A=A (ZZTZT£F : IUf) AL 2B
ST

2008 2007
—EEBN\F —EELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Basic salaries, allowances and EXFHe  FRLE

benefits in kind R DR 2,401 2,187
Retirement benefit costs RIRAEFIE IR 33 20
2,434 2,207

Their emoluments were within the following band: ®E 2N FIATHAER
2008 2007
—EEBN\F —EELF
Number of Number of
employees employees
ESAZ 1ESAE
Nil = HK$1,000,000 #& — 1,000,000 7T 2 3
HK$1,000,001 - HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7T — 1,500,0007% 7T 1 1

11. DIVIDENDS 11. B2

No dividend was paid or proposed during 2008, “EENFETES MR BIRTAKRE B4

nor has any dividend been proposed since the
balance sheet date (2007: Nil).

FEURTEZFZRMNEARE (ZETLF
&) -
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12.

13.

LOSS PER SHARE

Basic loss per share is calculated based on the
loss for the year attributable to equity holders
of the Company of HK$1,465,000 (2007:
HK$2,711,000) and on 225,000,000 (2007:
225,000,000) ordinary shares in issue during the
year.

No diluted loss per share is presented as there
were no potential ordinary shares during the

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
HE-2T/\F+-A=t-ALTE

12. §IRE 18

BREABBIBREARARARREMLEE
1,465,000/ 7T (ZZZF+4F : 2,711,000 70) &
ANFEZANE 817 E 8 %225,000,0000% (ZEF
4 : 225,000,0008% ) 5+ & -

HRZEFFELEBE LB  WALEZ
J SRR -

years.
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. BBRBE
The Group
AEME
Furniture and
equipment
ERRRE
HK$'000
FHET
COST RAE
At 1st January, 2007 RZZEZ+F—HA—H 23
Additions NE 150
At 31st December, 2007 and 1st January, 2008 RZETEF+ZA=+—AK
—EEN\FE-HA—H 173
Additions NE 18
At 31st December, 2008 RZZZENF+ZA=+—H 191
DEPRECIATION e
At 1st January, 2007 RZZEZ+F—HA—H 6
Provided for the year FEEE 24
At 31st December, 2007 and 1st January, 2008 RZETEF+ZA=+—AK
—EEN\FE-HA—H 30
Provided for the year FERE 47
At 31st December, 2008 RZZEZENF+ZA=+—H 77
CARRYING AMOUNT REE
At 31st December, 2008 R-_TEENF+=-_A=+—H 114
At 31st December, 2007 RZETtF+=—A=+—AH 143
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13. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

Furniture and equipment are depreciated on a
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BE-TTN\F+-A=+—AILER

13. SRR (48)

BRI REANBREIREF20%E33",% 2 LL &

straight-line basis at 20% to 33'/,% per annum. e -
The Company
RKAF]
Furniture and
equipment
FERRERE
HK$'000
FET
COST RAE
At 1st January, 2007 R_ZET+F—-H—H 1
Additions nE 150
At 31st December, 2007 and 1st January, 2008 RZTZELF+—A=+—HK
RZZEZNF—HA—H 161
Additions NE 18
At 31st December, 2008 RZEENF+=ZA=+—H 179
DEPRECIATION e
At 1st January, 2007 R_ZET+F—H—H 4
Provided for the year FERE 21
At 31st December, 2007 and 1st January, 2008 RZTZELF+—A=+—HK
RZZEZNF—HA—H 25
Provided for the year FERE 44
At 31st December, 2008 RZEENF+=ZA=+—H 69
CARRYING AMOUNT BREE
At 31st December, 2008 RZZZENF+-A=+—H 110
At 31st December, 2007 RZTZZE+F+=-—A=+—H 136

Furniture and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at 20% to 33'/,% per annum.

& -

BRI REABE R EIZEF20%E33",% 2 LL &
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14. MORTGAGE LOANS 14. RIBER
The Group
EH
2008 2007
—BBNE e
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Fixed-rate loan receivables & 7E FI] 2 & U & 5k 7,057 4,854
Variable-rate loan receivables FEFERERER 2,951 2,474
10,008 7,328
Carrying amount analysed for LRREMS T2
reporting purposes: BREMAE -
Current assets (receivable within nBEE(BEEAR
12 months from the balance sheet date) TZEARZERER) 2,145 3,186
Non-current assets (receivable after InBEE(BLEEAR
12 months from the balance sheet date) F+Z@ABZERE) 7,863 4,142
10,008 7,328
Fixed-rate loan receivables and variable-rate EEFEEIWE R NFIHFEERE RIAIRE
loan receivables are secured by mortgage ERWEIRE - WIETISF RSB -
properties and bearing interest at market interest
rates.
Balance of mortgage loans at 31st December, RZEZNF+ A=+ —HZRBERE
2008 is net of accumulated impairment Bk 25HRE R # 220,000 7T gi‘ti-
allowances of HK$220,000 (2007: HK$196,000). 196,000/ 7T) °
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14. BIBE® (&)

REER  ENBRRERBZRIBERIHIE
Ao BAKNIEAERBROBREITAT

14. MORTGAGE LOANS (continued)

The maturity profile of mortgage loans, net of
impairment allowances, at the balance sheet
date is analysed by the remaining periods to their
contractual maturity dates as follows:

The Group
AEH
2008 2007
—EENEF ZETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Repayable: BIERE K
Within 3 months =@ARN 937 2,631
Between 3 months and 1 year —@RAE—F 1,208 555
Between 1 and 5 years —FERF 5,998 3,201
After 5 years RAELE 1,865 941
10,008 7,328

Before accepting any new customer, the Group
uses internal assessment system to assess the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. The mortgage loans
that are neither past due nor impaired have timely
repayment of principal.

The ageing of mortgage loans, net of impairment
allowances, which are past due but not impaired,
at the balance sheet date is analysed as follows:

BEMETAHELA  AKREERARFERR
AEEEEFPZEEERMAEEFZEER
B RBHERBEZRBERD EHENAK
@ o

REHER - SHIRBERBZZBER CaRE
RBE) ZEREDHTAT

The Group
AEE
2008 2007
—EENEF ZETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within 3 months =EAR 563 2,462

-
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14. MORTGAGE LOANS (continued)  14. 3885k (&)

The fair value of the Group’s mortgage loans,
determined based on the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted using
the current applicable interest rate at 31st
December, 2008, approximates to the carrying
amount of mortgage loans.

RZZEZTNE+ZA=+—H XEEZ&EB
ERZAFEEDREGAHAKRSRERE
BRAEFTRBREET  BRBEERZEHE
HE -

The Company

AAT
2008 2007
—ZEENE —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Variable-rate loan receivables FEN AR ERE R 205 1,682
Carrying amount analysed for RRRA ST
reporting purposes: ZHREE :
Current assets (receivable within nBEE(BLEEAR
12 months from the balance sheet date) +Z@ARZERE) 57 1,475
Non-current assets (receivable InBEE(BLEEAR
after 12 months from the balance +Z@ABZERE)
sheet date) 148 207
Variable-rate loan receivables TRENF R EE R 205 1,682

Variable-rate loan receivables are secured by
mortgage properties and bearing interest at
market interest rates.

Balance of mortgage loans at 31st December,
2008 is net of accumulated impairment
allowances of HK$Nil (2007: HK$40,000).

STEF R S OARIB R IE R - BRI
AETe

RIZEZNF+-_A=+—HAZRBERESD
R EFDRERES BT (ZZTZEF 1 40,000
BT °
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14. MORTGAGE LOANS (continued)  14. 3885k (1)

The maturity profile of variable-rate mortgage
loans, net of impairment allowances, at the
balance sheet date is analysed by the remaining
periods to their contractual maturity dates as

REER  ENBRRERBZRIBERIHIE
Ao BAKNIEAERBROBREITAT

follows:
The Company
AT
2008 2007
—EENF ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Repayable: EIERE K
Within 3 months “EAR 10 1,434
Between 3 months and 1 year “RBAZE—%F 47 41
Between 1 and 5 years —FERF 148 207
205 1,682

Before accepting any new customer, the
Company uses internal assessment system to
assess the potential customer’s credit quality and
defines credit limits by customer. The mortgage
loans that are neither past due nor impaired have
timely repayment of principal.

The ageing of mortgage loans, net of impairment
allowances, which are past due but not impaired,
at the balance sheet date is analysed as follows:

BEMERIMEP A ARFEBAERTE RS
AEEEEPZEEEARRATREFPZEER
e RBHBKREZRBERD ERENAR
@ o

REER - CHIRRERBZZBER (BHE
RBE) 2 BRI DT

The Company

AT
2008 2007
—EENF ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Within 3 months =@AR - 1,420

-
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14. MORTGAGE LOANS (continued)

The fair value of the Company’s mortgage
loans, determined based on the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
HE-2T/\F+-A=t-ALTE

14. BIBE® (W)

RZZBZENFFTZA=1+—8 ARQAIZ2K\
ERZAFEENREGAHAKRESRERE
BRAEFTRBREETE  BRBERZEHE

using the current applicable interest rate at 31st HBE -
December, 2008, approximates the carrying
amount of the mortgage loans.
15. IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCES ON 15. 3% 18 8 ¥R (E % iR
MORTGAGE LOANS
The Group
AEH
Impairment allowances
WERE
Individual Collective Total
& 51 2 a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1st January, 2007 RZETEF—H—H - 168 168
Charge during the year FERE - 28 28
At 31st December, 2007 and RZZEZ+F+A=+—H
1st January, 2008 E_ZZENF—-H—H - 196 196
Charge during the year FERE - 24 24
At 31st December, 2008 RZBENF+ZA=+—H - 220 220




The Hong Kong Building and Loan Agency Limited 2008 Annual Report

HRERENERAR —BENFFR

Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 31st December, 2008

BE-TTN\F+-A=+—AILER
R RRME

15. IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCES ON 15. $% 35 5 R0 (E 9 0 ()
MORTGAGE LOANS (continued)
The Company
AATE
Impairment allowances
RERE
Individual Collective Total
&1 51 ®E &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET
At 1st January, 2007 RZETEF—H—H - 80 80
Written back during the year FEER - (40) (40)
At 31st December, 2007 and RZZEZ+F+RA=+—H
1st January, 2008 k=TT N\F—A—H - 40 40

Written back during the year FE R - (40) (40)

At 31st December, 2008 RZTEZENF+=-_A=+—H - - -

Individual impairment is made when the
mortgage loans borrowers in unable to repay the
principal on time and the present value of the
collateral held by the Group and the Company is
not sufficient to cover the carrying amount of the
receivables.

In addition to the individually assessed impairment
allowance, the Group and the Company have also
provided collectively assessed mortgage loans
impairment allowances on the basis of historical
loss experience.

B ERE T TR EELS  AAKE
RARRRB 2 BM @2 RET B IAE MR
FORZ BREME - AIEL ERIR(E -

BRE R ET 2 BUEEESN  NEERARQEIN
RIBESL BREREHBEMA ZRBETR
BB -

__
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16.

HELD-FOR-TRADING
INVESTMENTS

Held-for-trading investments include:

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
HE-2T/\F+-A=t-ALTE

16. BFEEERSE

FIFEERERH

The Group and the Company

TEBRAAT
2008 2007
—EEN\E —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FrET
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REE LT 2 RAE 5 3,859 8,024
Convertible bonds AR E S 36,397 -
40,256 8,024

The fair value of the equity securities is
determined based on the quoted market bid
prices available on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

During the year, the Company purchased
convertible bonds with zero coupon, or with
coupon rates ranging from 1% to 2%. The equity
conversion options attached to the convertible
bonds are embedded derivatives granting
the right to the Company to convert the debt
securities into equity shares of the issuer before
maturity. The fair value of the convertible bonds is
determined based on the market prices obtained
from brokers and with reference to those of price
servicing agencies.

The convertible bonds amounting to
HK$5,371,000, HK$16,144,000 and HK$9,001,000
are denominated in USD, SGD and RMB
respectively.

BABS A FEBEIDREEMIFMMBLT
BEANEEE -

RAEE KRB ETEXIIENF1%E2%
TEZRMERABZABBRES IO ERE
BEGRRAFEEREZKRE - JRERES
B s 2 BN B M A 1R T AR R B AT R B B A
HESEFERSBEITAZERK - ARG
HRZAFEERRELANESZMBTSEE
W2 EBEREREMBERETE -

LAETT » IR T R ARBHE 2 A B E S
4 %5 B A5,371,0005 7T ~ 16,144,000 7T &
9,001,000 7T,



Notes to the Financial Statements

MR KM

17.

18.
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HE_ZT)\F+_A=+—HILEE

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE 17 AfHERSE
INVESTMENTS
Available-for-sale investments include: A HERE R :
The Group and the Company
AEEREAT
2008 2007
—EENF —TTLH
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Mortgage-backed securities quoted in M EBR(E 2 1258
the United States of America YIEEES 39,179 42,480
As of 31st December, 2008, the available-for- RZZEZNF+ZA=+—1H AJfHEERE
sale investments, which are denominated in TWAETEE FBHZHEAEERUNERZ
United States dollar. The underlying assets of SEFEEB FAAHEEEREZAFER
the securities are pooled residential mortgages REENESZEMETL2ZERRBAR
located in the United States of America. The fair BRERETE AIHEEREZEHNFNEX
value of the above available-for-sale investments AB55% BB A-ZT-—RAF A -
is based on the market prices obtained from
brokers and with reference to those price
servicing agencies. The contractual interest rate
of the available-for-sale investments was 5.5%
per annum and with maturity date of February
2035.
BANK BALANCES 18. SRITHEER

The amounts comprise bank balances held by
the Group and the Company and short-term
bank deposits at market interest rates with an
original maturity of three months or less. The
fair value of these assets at 31st December,
2008 approximates the corresponding carrying
amount.

HLEFREAEBENARNRRRE 2 RITHER
ERNBAR=EARIHARTSHEFEZ
RERITER - R-TENF+T_A=+—H"
REFEEZAVFEEEAEREERS

-



The Hong Kong Building and Loan Agency Limited 2008 Annual Report

BRERENARAR —BEN\FFH

Notes to the Financial Statements

MR R

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
HE-2T/\F+-A=t-ALTE

19. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE 19. XL FKRE
COMPANY
2008 & 2007
“EENFR-ZELHF
HK$'000
FET
Authorised: JETE
300,000,000 ordinary shares 300,000,000% & % I {E1.007% 7T
of HK$1.00 each Z BB 300,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRAR
225,000,000 ordinary shares 225,000,000/% & fx E B 1.007 7T
of HK$1.00 each S sl e) 225,000
20. RESERVES 20. il
The Company
b NN
Investments
revaluation Retained
reserve profits Total
REEMHEE HREREF et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FAET
At 1st January, 2007 R-ZZEZ+F—HF—H - 7,892 7,892
Fair value changes of available- HENESTERZ
for-sale investments AfHERERATEE
directly recognised in equity b)) 90 - 90
Loss for the year REFEE - (2,732) (2,732)
At 31st December, 2007 and RZZEZELF+-_A=+—H
1st January, 2008 r=—ZEZEN\F—HA—H 90 5,160 5,250
Fair value changes of available-for- ET%EM%EE* R
sale investments directly HEEREZ AFEE
recognised in equity Azib 807 - 807
Transfer to profit or loss on REEAHEERE
disposal of available-for-sale g AER
investments (22) - (22)
Loss for the year NEEEE - (2,649) (2,649)
At 31st December, 2008 RZEENFE+=ZA=+—8H 875 2,511 3,386
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21.

22.

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
BE_ZTTN\F+_-_A=+—HILFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 21. BFEABRER
The Group manages its capital to ensure that AREFBEERELES UREREBRN Y s
entitigs in the Grouph\(\llill be gblg .to ctor:]tinuf as e REE( S ERERSEEEE
a going concern while maximising the return BB KB o A A Y R
to stakeholders through the optimisation of the .
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy 2% -
remains unchanged from prior year.
The Capital structure of the Group consists AREBZEBAEEAIERESNBESEEYRA
ol casn and cash equivalents and eauity ARBMR S  ZESREDRTRAR
attributable to equity holders of the Company, ) 5 TE g Wt . N "
apiefo equity | pany (REE M © B IR B A AU R T A LR AT
comprising issued share capital and retained s . -
profits. The management reviews the capital AARE A ARBBEBEEREKT
structure by considering the cost of capital. In AR ERBEITEA (MER) EEEEEEARN
view of this, the Group manages its overall capital e -
structure through monitoring the cash level,
payment of dividends and issuance of share
capital if the need arise.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 22. &#@MIR
(A) Categories of financial instruments (A) ©@IEEH
The Group
xEH
2008 2007
—BBN\F —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TET
Financial assets SREE
Fair value through profit or loss BRBEERRATEERE
Held-for-trading %f’ﬁ%ﬁ?‘é 40,256 8,204
Loans and receivables (including RRER IR (BIERE R
cash and cash equivalents) fﬁﬁﬁff%) 150,506 180,135
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 39,179 42,480
Financial liabilities ERaE
Amortised cost b 31 DN 1,681 1,667
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22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 2. &@MTIRA (&)

(continued)

(A) Categories of financial instruments
(continued)

(A) €I EER (&)

The Company

(®)

b NN
2008 2007
—EENFE ZETEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets SREE
Fair value through profit or loss FBBERRAFEERRE
Held-for-trading BIEEE 40,256 8,024
Loans and receivables (including BERRERFIE(BERS R
cash and cash equivalents) REEEM) 150,054 180,887
Available-for-sale investments Al ERE 39,179 42,480
Financial liabilities tRBeE
Amortised cost B SR 1,673 1,659

Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below.
These risks include market risks (including
currency risk, interest rate risk and price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Market risk

The Group’s and the Company’s activities
expose it primarily to the financial risks of
change in foreign currency exchange rates,
interest rates and prices of equity on held-
for-trading investments and available-for-
sale investments.

Foreign currency risk management

The Group and the Company have foreign
currency denominated bank balances,
available-for-sale investments, other
financial assets and other receivables,
which expose the Group and the Company
to foreign currency risk.

(B) TRARERE BEREREXE

B2 E e BT AR 2 kR KR 4 % %
FRRCBREIINT - ZFARBED
SRR (BREERER - FRER & ERR
) - FERREABESRER - EREE
BN PR L R AR R K B A B i

AL | =
BERTE -

5 m

AEBEARB 2 EHRDEEERAT
SNEEFE = - MR RIFEE EIRE R AIH
HEREZBRABRES 2 AR

SMNE R BR B

AEBRARRZRITHES  AIHEHER
B Hh e EE A RERIAINE
SIME - EARKE AR B AZINERE R
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22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(B) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Foreign currency risk management
(continued)

The carrying amount of the Group’s and the
Company’s foreign currency denominated
monetary assets at the reporting date are as

The Hong Kong Building and Loan Agency Limited 2008 Annual Report
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22. &« T/ (i)

(B) =RAMERE 2B BRERIEE (H)

5 E ()

SME R B ()

REREE  AEERART 2 IMETIE
EWEEZEAENT

follows:
The Group and the Company

AEEREAT
2008 2007
—EENE ZTTLHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
United States Dollar e 62,595 43,024
Singapore Dollar #rhnig oo 16,144 -
Chinese Renminbi Yuan AR 9,001 -

Sensitivity analysis

The Group and the Company are mainly
exposed to the effects of fluctuation
in Singapore Dollar (“SGD”), Chinese
Renminbi Yuan (“RMB”) and United States
Dollar (“USD”).

AEBRARREEAZIHMETT - AR
BRETLKE 2 FE -

-
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22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 2. &@MTIRA (&)

(continued)

(B) Financial risk management objectives (B) cREMEERE 2 BERBE (F)

and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The following table details the Group’s and
the Company’s sensitivity to a 5% (2007:
N/A) increase/decrease in the Hong Kong
Dollars (“HKD”) against SGD and RMB
and 1% (2007: 1%) increase/decrease in
HKD against USD respectively. As a result
of the volatile financial market in 2008, the
management adjusted the sensitivity rate
from 1% to 5% for the purpose of assessing
foreign currency risk against SGD and RMB
while keeping the sensitivity rate of 1% for
USD due to the fact that the USD is pegged
with the HKD under the linked exchange
rate system in Hong Kong. Hence, 5%
and 1% are the sensitivity rates used in
the current year when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates.

The sensitivity analysis includes
outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary assets. A positive number
below indicates a decrease in loss before
tax where the HKD weaken 5% (2007:
N/A) against SGD and RMB and 1% (2007:

1%) against the USD. For a 5% (2007:
N/A) strengthening of the HKD against
the SGD and RMB and a 1% (2007: 1%)
strengthening of the HKD against the USD,
there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the loss before tax, and the
balance below would be negative.

m 5 EE ()
HRE ST (E)
T%Ei?ﬁﬁ%&$’&ﬁ’ﬁ%ﬂ¥ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ

TR ARKEE N, HA5% (Z T+
F:AER) 2GRRERBITHETIEM
ﬁi%%(:= TEF 1 1%) ZHEE © /i
AZTT ) N\FERMMIBZTEE  EEE
z%%ﬁa%ﬁbui&rc&/\ﬁﬁ%%%@ o35
AR A1%FHEEE%  MARNESHE
PERGI R4 EomEB e BMHET
1% 2 BURE - At - NFEHRAS% K
1% BREREERE IEAE\W*BE#&QI\’%
E g - WEEREHINEER KA LS
B) 2 5 -

BREI>MBEHREEINEIE L EE
BE - THEHERRMEFIMETREAR
B TR E95% (Z T+ F - TERA) -
AN R ETTERI1% (ZET+HF 1 1%)
BIBRTATES 1B 2 o BT IR T RAR
BEEETTINES% (ZET L4 - TEA) -
AR ZETRBTINGER1% (ZTTLF
1%) - BB E R ATEBEERESE RER
FE MIIEBRERBE -
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22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 22 &Ft T A (8)
(continued)
(B) Financial risk management objectives (B) cREMERE - BERBE (F)

and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued) 5 E ()
Sensitivity analysis (continued) BUREE AT ()
The Group and the Company
AEEREAQT
2008 2007
—ZEENE —ETLF
Sensitivity rate Bk R
SGD T 5% -
RMB AR 5% -
usD e 1% 1%
2008 2007
—ZEENE —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss before tax e Bl BT 18
SGD T 807 -
RMB AR 450 -
usD e 626 430
This is mainly attributable to the exposure I NDEERRFR2IRITHES  AMEHERE
outstanding on the bank balances, BEERREATEERE S EENREM
available-for-sale investments, financial AETTANEZ FEWFRIBZ R T &ERE - M
assets at FVTPL and other receivables mgETkARBIE 2 ERBEZERATER
denominated in USD and exposure BRIBZEREBEART MR

outstanding on financial assets at FVTPL
denominated in SGD and RMB at year end.
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22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 2. &@MTIRA(HE)

(continued)

(B) Financial risk management objectives (B) cREMERE 2 BERBE (F)

and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The Group’s and the Company’s sensitivity
to foreign currencies have increased during
the current year which are mainly due to the
purchase of financial assets at FVTPL and
the holding of USD. As the Group did not
have any investment exposure to SGD and
RMB in prior year, no foreign currency risk
exposure for the Group and the Company
on SGD and RMB was noted in prior year.

Interest rate risk management

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the
value of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.
Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the
future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group currently has no
hedging approach to the fair value interest
rate risk on its fixed-rate mortgage loans,
the management of the Group will consider
hedging the risk exposure should the need
arise. The Group’s and the Company’s
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk is
caused by both the variable-rate mortgage
loans and bank deposits. Interest income
will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group and the Company
are currently debt-free and the management
of the Group believes that the Group’s and
the Company’s exposure to the cash flow
interest rate risk is insignificant.

m 5 E ()

BRE ST (E)
AEBRARBEINE 2 HREERANF
Bigm FTEHRBERBBERREAT
BEREZEREEMSART - BRA
SEREFABEMF IR T RAREER
B EAmAMEAEERARRREFII
T B A R A AR RISNE LR -

T 7 o & FE
NEBEMNEEBREeRIAZEEKH
RHSFHESEHMEE2EAR - ReRE
FMERBIESHTAZRKRBESRESA
RMSHEREFHMEE 2 AR - NEEF
AT H B M RS E R EE P A FE
BNERRTE  AEEEEERKZERE
RUEREFRR - NEBRAAGZH
SHREFMERRBHZIHANRZBER K
WRITTFREE - FBBRABHRTISF X
FEMLE) o NEBRANARE AL EE
% BEAEEERERRE AEERAA
AlzBEemnENERRITTERK -
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22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(B) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have
been determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments at the balance sheet date.
For bank balances and variable-rate
mortgage loans, the analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of bank balances
and mortgage loans at the balance sheet
date were outstanding for the whole year.
A 200 basis point increase or decrease
in the Hong Kong lending rate is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If interest rates had been 200 basis
points higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s and
the Company’s loss before tax for the
year ended 31st December, 2008 would
decrease/increase by HK$2,399,000
(2007: HK$3,264,000) for the Group, and
decrease/increase by HK$2,344,000
(2007: HK$3,248,000) for the Company.
This is mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable-
rate mortgage loans and short term bank
deposits.

The Group’s and the Company'’s sensitivity
to interest rates have decreased during the
current year mainly due to the reduction in
variable rate mortgage loans and short term
bank deposits.

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
HE-2T/\F+-A=t-ALTE

22. &« T/ (i)

(B) ERAMERE 2B BERIEE (H)

m 5 E ()

TIBRESMERERGEEHIFFITET
B MZEBEFE - LiIRTTAER LT B
KRBERME oM HREZREER
2FZIRTREBRIRIBER Z TR KE
EMARS o B8 EFH R200E 28 MR
PRAEEEIEA B RN ERE B X @R T
Ao XEERESNXRAIEREEE ¥
fir o

WA RE EFTBE200E 2 - B HM
BERFTE  AEEREARREBE=Z
ENF+_A=Z+—ALEEZERBAE
BREEAEEMmE R, 112,399,000/
TL(ZZZ 4 1 3,264,00087T) * HARQ
alm s M,/ 18 hn2,344,0008 T (ZEZ
+F 13,248,000 7T) c hEANAEE
PEF B R348 B 5k % 2 BB AR 1T 17 UK
SRR ERRB

AEBERARRBHN KR ZHRECRAF
ERE  T2HNFPNXRBERRE
HERITIF BB -
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22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 2. &@MTIRA(HE)

(continued)

(B) Financial risk management objectives (B) cREMERE 2 BERBE (F)

and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Price risks

The Group and the Company are exposed
to price risk through its investment in
listed equity securities, convertible bonds
and mortgage-backed securities. The
management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk profiles. In addition, the price
risk was monitored by the management
of the Group and the Company and will
consider hedging the risk exposure should
the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to price
risk at the reporting date.

If market prices of listed equity securities
and convertible bonds had been 20%
(2007: 5%) higher/lower, loss before tax
for the year ended 31st December, 2008
would decrease/increase by HK$8,051,000
(2007: HK$401,000). This is mainly due to
the changes in fair value of and increase in
held-for-trading investments; and

If market price of mortgage-backed
securities had been 10% (2007: 5%) higher/
lower, investment revaluation reserve would
increase/decrease by HK$3,918,000 (2007:
HK$2,124,000) as a result of the change in
fair value of available-for-sale investments.

m 5 E ()

B8R

AEBEARRBEBER EHRAES
AR ER RIRB R ES 2 RE AR
AEBER EEEZBRHEATRRER
AR REBEEIRIARR © tho - B
RERBAEERANREEGEE
ZRN U ERE HER

THGREDTERBERERB MEZZ
EBRRERETE

iE EmMEAFSERAIRRESZTMER
EHTER20% (ZET+F 1 5%) - HE
ZEENF+ZA=+—HLEFEZERH
Al ES 1B R > 18 718,051,000/ 7T (=&
T4 1 401,000 7C) © I E B HRIFIE
EERBEZAFEBEESH RGN &

HERBIFEEFZMELATHE10%
(ZZTLF :5%)  REEHRHEGE
/8 43,918,000 L (Z T T L F ¢
2,124,000/ 70) * YRR A HERE 2
N BEZEHTE -
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22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(B) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The Group’s and the Company’s sensitivity
to prices have increased during the current
year mainly due to the purchase of the
financial assets at FVTPL.

Credit risk

The Group’s and the Company’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties failure to perform
their obligations at 31st December, 2008
in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets are the carrying amount of
those assets as stated in the consolidated
balance sheet and balance sheet. In order
to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue loans. In addition,
the Group and the Company review the
recoverable amount of each individual
mortgage loan at each balance sheet date
to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. The
credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks located in
Hong Kong subject to the supervision by the
Hong Kong Monetary Authority.

The Group and the Company have no
significant concentration of credit risk on
mortgage loans, with exposures spread
over a number of counterparties and
customers.

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
BE_ZTT\F+_-_A=+—HILFE

22. &« T/ (i)

(B) ERAMERE 2B BERIEE (H)

m 5 E ()

R DT ()
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EZEM AEBRARREZZHZANE
ERBAGEEEBBERAREERER
WA R ZEEEZRABE - ARER
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22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 2. &@MTIRA (&)

(continued)

(B) Financial risk management objectives (B) cREMEERE 2 BERBE (F)

and policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

For the investments in convertibles bonds
(note 16), the Group and the Company has
no significant concentration of credit risk as
it had been spread over several investee
companies located in People’s Republic of
China, Hong Kong, Singapore and United
States of America. These convertible bonds
are unrated by rating agencies.

For the investments in mortgage-backed
securities (note 17), the Group and the
Company had both concentration of credit
risk in single investment and geographical
location in the United States of America. The
credit quality of mortgage-backed securities
is mainly determined by the credit quality
of its underlying borrowers and residential
mortgages collaterals. The current weighted
average credit score of the mortgage
borrowers is considered as good according
to Fair Issac Corporation Inc. (“FICO”)
scoring method.

In this regard, the Directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s and
the Company’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

=B/ ()

IR ERRREST E (HaE16) - R E
R BN HEARKME - FE - #H0
BREBzZETERERR  WAKER
ARRAEBEER ZEERR - HLER
BB R A RIERBITAR

MIEBERBEIHEFSFME HFE17) K
SEEARFREBREREAMETE
BEERZEERR - RIBXFESFZE
EEZTZAREMEEAREAZERESR
MEEZRIBERDET o BIKFair Issac
Corporation Inc. ([FICO ) 2 &% %% » B Al
RIBEEAZNMETHEES I ERAR
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RUME ARAFEEBR/AEBERAR
AZEERRD KEEE -
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22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

22. &« T/ (i)

(B) Financial risk management objectives (B) ©REMEE > BERKE (E)

and policies (continued)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk,
the Group and the Company monitor
and maintain a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

No analysis of maturity profile on financial
liabilities is prepared, in the opinion of
directors, the Group and the Company’s
financial liabilities are repayable on demand
by virtue of their nature.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined as
follows:

e  The fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities with standard terms
and conditions and traded in active
liquid markets are determined with
reference to market prices; and

e  The fair value of other financial assets
and financial liabilities are determined
in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted
cash flow analysis using prices or
rates from observable current market
transactions as input.

The directors consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair
values.

MEBEZEEE

REBRBDECRERE  NEBRARRF
ERNMEREEERSRTREZRELRE
FEWKY  RASEEEXHRE I
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23. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 2. RBAFIZRER

The Company

b NN
2008 2007
—EEN\E —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Unlisted shares, at cost LIRS - AR 152 152

Particulars of subsidiaries at 31st December, RZEZNFR_TETLF+_A=+—HZ
2008 and 2007 are as follows: WEARZERIT :

Percentage of

Place of Issued and fully equity attributable
Name of incorporation paid ordinary to the Principal
Company and operation share capital Company activities
MR R ERITRHR RAFEGES
NEER BRI ZERRA BO FTEXEK
The Building and Hong Kong HK$2 100% Money lending
Loan Agency &5 27T BE
(Asia) Limited
EEER (M) BRAF
Winbest Holdings British Virgin Islands US$1 100% Dormant
Limited
Winbest Holdings KERLHE \E B
Limited
Alpha Gain Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% Dormant
Alpha Gain Limited BB 27T Tz

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
at 31st December, 2008 (2007: Nil) or at any time
during the year.

R-ZZENF+ A=+ —HRARFEEM
R EARMEEAESES (C2EL
Fo|m) e
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24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM 24, B ATIRRR
SUBSIDIARIES
The Company
NN
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Amounts due from subsidiaries S EPNEIE N 19,901 16,392
Allowance for impairment loss EEEEE (7,886) (7,881)
12,015 8,511

The amounts due from subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand and are expected to settle within one

MBRARZRAREER  RENIZEREE
RIBHHR —FREE -

year.
Movement in the allowance for impairment REERERE22S
loss
The Company
PN
2008 2007
—EENF —TELHF
HK$’000 HK$000
FHET FHET
Balance at beginning of year FEEH 7,881 7,876
Charge during the year REFERZ 5 5
Balance at end of year F IR a0 7,886 7,881

The amounts due from subsidiaries are impaired
due to the present value of discounted cash flows
being lesser than its carrying amounts.

The amounts due from subsidiaries which are
neither past due nor impaired have the repayment
ability to settle the outstanding amounts. The
Company does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

HRBRASREZREIREREE Bt
AP B~ RISRIB B FTRLE -

AP B~ R CRBH R ARRE) BEERE
NI HAREEFIR - RAREZEHEHRL
ERAEERY

__
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25. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax assets
and liabilities recognised by the Group and the
Company and movements thereon during the
current and prior years:

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
HE_ZT)\F+_A=+—HBILFE

25. ;B IER IR

UTRARAFERBEFERARERART
BRZIBECEHREERBBEREZE

The Group
AEE
Impairment
Accelerated allowances
tax on mortgage Tax
depreciation loans losses Total
B REBER
wE WERE REER #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FET T
At 1st January, 2007 R-ZZTZ+F—A—H (1) 15 2,598 2,612
(Charge) credit to income AN Z (F0BR)
for the year AN E AR 1 (15) (2,598) (2,612)
At 31st December, RZBELF
2007 and 2008 RZZBENF
+-A=+—H - - - -

At the balance sheet date, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$53,690,000
(2007: HK$44,387,000) available for offset
against future profits.

No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the following balances as it is
uncertain that there will be sufficient future
profits available to utilise the balances, and the
unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

NEEH AEBZAERARBERYA
53,690,000/ 7T (ZZZ 4 : 44,387,000 7T)
Al AR S AR RE T

mﬂlTﬁmhI%Eﬁi%$Xmﬂ HE
R M EA T EREREERIBEE -
ﬁ*% B2 IS 1B ] R A 45 8 o

2008 2007

—EEN\F —TTLF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Unrecognised tax losses RIERMEEIE 53,690 44,387
Deductible temporary differences AT 3 G B 2= 58 122 72

N 100
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25. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 25. B IE ()

The Company
RKAF]
Tax losses
HEER
HK$'000
FET
At 1st January, 2007 RZZEZ+HF—H—H 2,398
Charge to income for the year AEE B REER (2,398)

At 31st December, 2007 and 2008 RZBZLFR

—EENF+-_A=+—H -

At the balance sheet date, the Company has
unused tax losses of HK$53,690,000 (2007:
HK$43,534,000) available for offset against future
profits.

No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the following balances as it is
uncertain that there will be sufficient future
profits available to utilise the balances, and the
unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward

REEH AQXAZAERANRBERR
53,690,000/8 7T (Z T T+ : 43,534,000) A A
RIS R AR H) -

AR N HETE S SRR A B R 5K 0 ) AT (L B
%GR - MU EPLIA TERERELCHAEE
fel R FERR < B0 7% 5 18 m) PR M b A5 8 -

indefinitely.
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Unrecognised tax losses RERTEEIE 53,690 43,534
Deductible temporary differences AT 08 G B 2= 58 - -

101

-
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26.

27.

OPERATING LEASES

At the balance sheet date, the Group and
the Company had no commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating lease which fall due within one year.

Operating leases payments represent rentals
payable by the Group and the Company for
certain of its office properties. Leases are
negotiated for an average term of one year and
rentals are fixed for the respective lease term.

On 7th January, 2009, the Group and the
Company had entered into lease agreements
with the former intermediate holding company for
the rental of office premises for one year from 1st
January, 2009 which will give rise to an annual
commitment of HK$72,000 and HK$36,000
respectively.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group and the Company participate in a
defined contribution scheme which is registered
under a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “"MPF Scheme”) established under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
in December 2000. The assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the Group and the
Company, in funds under the control of trustee.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group
and the Company contribute 5% of relevant
payroll costs to the scheme, which contribution is
matched by employees.

The total costs charged to the consolidated
income statement of HK$34,000 (2007:
HK$30,000) represents contributions payable to
the scheme by the Group in respect of the current
accounting period.

26.

27.

For the year ended 31st December, 2008
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28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28. BRAEZEALTXS

During the year, the Group entered into the REEAREEHEBAEATEIIUATRS
following transactions with related parties:

(A) Expense items: (A) BAXIEH :
The Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EENE ZTTLHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Rental paid to a former A AT EEAR A A
intermediate holding company RHEE 72 72
Commissions paid to former M) A1 R R BB A A
fellow subsidiaries SRS - 162
Services fee paid to a former A AT EEAR A A
intermediate holding company SRS & 546 611
In last year, the ultimate holding company REF  AEBZHERERARCHBEAEER
of the Group had been changed from Allied BBR A A% 8 AMercurius GP LLC © & & &8
Group Limited to Mercurius GP LLC. The ERAFZEE 2R A LM -
above transactions were included up to
the date of the change in ultimate holding
company.
(B) Compensation of key management (B) XEEEREZHE
personnel
The key management of the Group rEE FEEREREZEBES  HM
comprises all Directors, details of their SHBERMIFRE -EE2MEemEE
remuneration are disclosed in note 9. The BEeRTEARBEATSBEETE -

remuneration of Directors is determined by
the Remuneration Committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and
market trends.
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Summary of Financial Information

MERHEE

A summary of the results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the five financial years
ended 31st December, 2008, as extracted from the
audited consolidated financial statements, is as set
out below.

AEEBE—_TT)N\F+_A=+—BLAEMIK
FEZEXEREERABERENT  ZFERIIH
BB EERRRAMBE]ME

RESULTS E 4
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
—EENG —TTLF ZTTARF —TTHRF —TTNWEF
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
(restated) (restated) (restated)
(F &%) (&%) (f=&E5))
Revenue Yz 7,553 11,556 12,939 6,293 16,256
(Loss) profit for
the year
attributable to
equity holders NN R B R B4
of the Company FEUEE) =F (1,465) (2,711) 11,271 1,235 8,285

HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents

Bl JBN JEM JEN SN
(Loss) earnings
per share Bk (E1E) &8F (0.7) (1.2) 5.0 0.5 3.7
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

ZEENF —T2ALF —ZBTREFE —TTRF —TENF
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TIET TIETT TIETT TIETT

(restated) (restated) (restated)

(BE5)) (E5)) (L=E5)

Total assets BERE 230,364 231,033 232,758 221,444 220,719
Total liabilities AfEEE (1,784) (1,773) (877) (834) (1,344)
Net assets BEFE 228,580 229,260 231,881 220,610 219,375
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